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The economy began a tentative recovery in 2010, but challenges certainly  
remained. Many union members continue to face fewer employment opportunities 
and, as we have seen in the early months of 2011, public sector union members 
are facing additional attacks on their pensions and benefits by state legislatures 
across the country.

2010 highlights:

The financial strength ratings of our insurance divisions were reaffirmed by A.M. Best, 
with a secure B+ stable outlook for Union Labor Life and a secure B+ positive outlook 
for Ullico Casualty Company.

Total assets under management as of December 31, 2010 were $5.6 billion, 
an increase from $5.4 billion at year-end 2009.

Premium and fee revenue for 2010 was $314.0 million,  
a $26.6 million increase over 2009.

Net income increased by $5.7 million, from $1.7 million in 2009  
to $7.4 million in 2010.

Despite the sluggish economy, Ullico 
continued its solid performance in 2010, 
bringing superior insurance and financial 
products and services to union workplaces 
across the country in a time when they 
needed it most.

Strategic planning, flexibility, creativity and 
the dedication of Ullico’s Board members, 
management team and associates have made 
the year’s successes possible.

2010 At A glAnce
Ullico remains the only multi-line insurance 
and financial services provider dedicated to 
the union marketplace. And our 83 years in this 
market provide the unique insights and experience 
vital to strengthening our market position, even 
in the most uncertain times. 

Like most businesses, Ullico saw its share of 
ups and downs in 2010. Fortunately for us, there 
were more good days than bad and we were 
able to navigate the turbulent economic waters. 
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ProPerty & cAsuAlty Division
The dedicated team in the Property and Casu-
alty business unit kept the forward momentum 
going in 2010, growing net written premium 
from $104.5 million in 2009 to $137.4 million in 
2010, a 31 percent increase. The unit posted a 
pre-tax gain of $10.4 million.

Despite soft market conditions and significant 
competition from new market entrants, the 
professional liability lines grew for the sixth 
straight year in 2010. Growth was due to the 
continued expansion in the public benefit fund 
market, successful broker relationships and 
thought leadership initiatives in the multi-
employer and the public benefit fund Fiduciary 
Liability markets. we also secured an agree-
ment with hudson insurance Company to issue 
$25 million limits for Fiduciary Liability to attract 
larger accounts. Further, we implemented a new 
state-of-the-art technology system which will 
help streamline Professional Liability and Com-
mercial Lines underwriting.

The Surety business added the division’s first 
branch office – opened in California – which 
produced $5 million in business in its first year 
of operation. According to the Surety and Fidel-
ity Association of America, our operation is now 
among the top 40 largest sureties in the nation. 
Additionally, Ullico Casualty’s Contract Surety 
Bonds Program began issuing bonds in the 
Small Business Administration’s Prior Approval 
Program, enabling us to better assist small 
contractors who may not qualify for traditional 
bonding. we now have a top-tier surety operation 

that helps emerging contractors compete for 
projects, which leads to union job growth and 
an improvement in our economy. 

our Commercial Lines also continued to grow, 
particularly the workers’ Compensation business. 
Thanks to a creative risk-sharing platform that is 
achieving greater-than-industry-average results, 
we have experienced a 66 percent growth in net 
written premium. we doubled the size of the 
highly successful and profitable west Virginia 
union contractor captive insurance program, 
which rewards contractors for the low loss ratios 
that may result from their choice to utilize skilled 
union labor.

life & heAlth Division
For 83 years, the Life and health business unit 
has provided protection and peace of mind for 
union members and their families. That tradition 
continues, and in 2010 the unit also delivered a 
solid performance, posting a pre-tax gain of $14.2 
million in 2010 compared to $9.1 million in 2009.

The division remains a leading provider of 
Medical Stop Loss insurance to multi-employer 
health and welfare plans. Premium for Medi-
cal Stop Loss has grown by 75 percent for the 
unit since 2006. As a result of the passage of 
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act 
(PPACA), which for self-insured plans increases 
the importance of purchasing Stop Loss, many 
discussions have taken place with Labor groups 
on designing cost-effective strategies for the 
purchase of this coverage.
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Several new Group Life and health products and 
options were launched in 2010, which enhanced 
the group’s profitable Medical Stop Loss of-
ferings, including an Aggregate Prescription 
Stop Loss product; a unique multi-year pricing 
option for Medical Stop Loss; and a new captive 
program providing an alternative risk solution 
for our Stop Loss clients. Additionally, the group 
re-launched its Group Disability product.

The unit continued to position its Direct Market-
ing product line for the future with the addition 
of six new international clients during the year. 

investment services Division
The investment Services business unit posted 
a pre-tax gain of $13.4 million. in addition, the 
team was successful in raising more than $250 
million in new deposits in its investment funds 
and finished the year with more than $4.9 bil-
lion in third party assets under management, up 
from $4.7 billion at year-end 2009.

The division’s real estate investment Group 
(reiG), which manages $3.4 billion in assets 
invested in Separate Account J and other 
private commercial real estate debt and equity 
funds, posted a pre-tax gain of $10.7 million for 
the year. Gross fee income decreased slightly to 
$26.4 million compared to $28.2 million in the 
year prior as a result of the Company’s decision 
to waive temporarily 10 percent of the invest-
ment management fee for Separate Account J. 
we believe that Separate Account J has taken 
steps to address the challenges posed by the 
decline in the commercial real estate market. 

Moving forward, it is well positioned to provide 
competitive fixed income investment returns 
that have been the hallmark of Separate Account 
J since its inception over 30 years ago.*

The Division’s non-reiG products recorded 
a pre-tax gain of $2.7 million during the 
year. Non-reiG assets under management 
increased by $.2 billion to close the year at 
$1.5 billion.

corPorAte
The past year has brought several changes at 
the corporate level. in 2010, Corporate Market-
ing spearheaded a branding initiative, including 
a newly designed logo, website and marketing 
materials, to enhance the position of Ullico in 
the union marketplace and allow us to commu-
nicate more effectively the Company’s value to 
our clients and potential clients. 

Further, we recognize the importance of plac-
ing a high priority on both compliance and risk 
management. To that end we have continued 
to enhance these essential processes to ensure 
the highest level of responsibility to our share-
holders, investors and policy holders. 

in 2010, we also saw a changing of the guard at 
the highest levels of the Company. in December, 
we bid a fond farewell to Ceo edward Mcelroy, 
who successfully led us through this economi-
cally challenging time. we are pleased that his 
talent and commitment to the Ullico mission 
are not lost as Mr. Mcelroy remains a valued 
member of our Board of Directors. 
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A look AheAD
These continue to be unprecedented times. And 
there remain many changes on the horizon for 
2011. Proposed revisions to state and federal 
policies will likely bring additional opportu-
nities, and some challenges for us and the 
unionized workforce. however, our flexibility 
and creativity will allow us to adjust to this 
changing landscape to provide the products and 
services our clients need for a stable future. 

During 2010, we undertook an intensive review 
of all operating and administrative costs and 
expenses. The review led us to conclude that 
some changes were necessary to bring our 
cost structure in line with similar companies 
in the marketplace. A plan was developed to 

effectively manage costs and implementation 
has begun. These efforts, combined with grow-
ing our revenue by bringing innovative new 
products to market and entering into strategic 
partnerships, will help enhance our profitability 
in 2011 and beyond.

As 2010 wound to a close, we saw valued team 
members such as Dan wolak and Joe Linehan 
take on new leadership positions within Life 
& health and investments Services. Some 
changes will be easy, while others will be less 
so. But all will make Ullico stronger in the long-
term, and ensure that this Company will help 
strengthen the union workplace.

Sincerely,

Edward M. Smith Joseph J. Hunt
President & Chief executive officer Chairman of the Board

* Separate Account J is available through the purchase of a group annuity issued by The Union Labor Life Insurance Company and sold by Ullico Investment Company (Mem-
ber FINRA/SIPC). The investment return and principal value of an investment will fluctuate so that an investor’s units, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their 
original cost. Investments in illiquid real estate and commercial mortgage loans are subject to additional risks including the potential inability of an investor to redeem units.
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INTRODUCTION

The following discussion highlights significant factors influencing the consolidated results of operations 
and financial position of Ullico Inc. and its subsidiaries (“the Company”).  It should be read in conjunction 
with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included in the 2010 Annual Report.  Unless 
otherwise noted, estimated industry data are referenced from materials presented on a statutory basis by 
A.M. Best Co., a leading insurance industry statistical, analytical and financial strength rating organiza-
tion.  Statutory data for the company is labeled as such; all other company data is presented in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).  Dollar amounts 
are rounded to millions; calculations of percent changes are based on whole dollar amounts.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

As the largest multi-line insurance and financial services company owned by Labor, the Company adds 
intrinsic value to the Labor movement.  The Company has gained unique experience and insight during its 
eighty-three years in the insurance business. The Company is building upon this experience to strengthen 
its market position and provide superior insurance and financial products and services to Labor and em-
ployers of union members.

The Company’s revenues consist primarily of premium income from The Union Labor Life Insurance 
Company’s (“Union Labor Life”) Life and Health products, fee income from Union Labor Life’s Separate 
Account J, fee income from investment services through Ullico Investment Advisors, Inc. and premium 
income from its Property and Casualty (“P&C”) insurance operations through Fiduciary Liability, Union 
Liability, Workers’ Compensation, Commercial and Surety lines of business.  

The revenue potential from our insurance lines of business is highly dependent on our financial strength 
ratings from A.M. Best.  As of July 2010, Union Labor Life’s rating was reaffirmed as a secure B+ stable 
outlook.  Ullico Casualty Company’s (“Ullico Casualty”) rating was also reaffirmed as a secure B+ posi-
tive outlook.

Within the group, Union Labor Life’s capital and surplus on a statutory basis as of December 31, 2010 
is $93.4 million.  Ullico Casualty’s capital and surplus on a statutory basis as of December 31, 2010 is 
$102.8 million.  
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year-to-date net income of $7.4 million at December 31, 2010 increased from a net income of $1.7 mil-
lion at December 31, 2009. Profit/(loss) results by major business unit and the explanations of year to date 
variances within those units are as follows:

BUSINESS UNIT RESULTS (in millions) 

December 31, 2010 

ytD

December 31, 2009 

ytD

Life and Health                $      12.2                    $        8.3          

Property and Casualty                   10.4                     8.9    

Investment Services                   13.4                   12.1

Exited Lines                     2.0                     0.8

Total Business Unit Results                   38.0                   30.1

Corporate Results                  (25.4)                  (26.5)

Pre-tax Operating Income                   12.6                     3.6

Non-Recurring Transactions                    (4.9)                    (1.0)

Income Tax Expense                    (0.3)                    (0.9)

Net Income            $       7.4                      $       1.7           

See below for detailed results and analysis by business unit.

Exited Lines
This line item includes pre-tax net income/(loss) from the Individual Life and Health and Group Health 
lines of business that the Company is no longer actively marketing.   

Corporate Results
Corporate results were primarily impacted by a reduction in legal fees and the recording of interest income 
related to an agreement in principle with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) concerning refund claims 
filed for previous years. These additions to income were partially offset by an increase in pension expense.

Non-Recurring Transactions 
The non-recurring category relates to legal settlements and related legal fees which resulted in $4.7 mil-
lion of expense in 2010.  The Company also recognized $0.2 million of severance expense in 2010. The 
amount for 2009 partially relates to legal settlements which resulted in $3.0 million of income. This in-
come was more than offset by $2.9 million of legal fees incurred related to the legal settlements and $1.1 
million of severance expense.  
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Income Tax Expense
As of December 31, 2010, the Company has recorded federal income tax expense in the amount of $0.3 
million. Income tax expense includes the impact of an agreement in principle with the IRS relating to re-
fund claims filed for previous years. No provision for a valuation allowance is included in the results of the 
Company since management believes it is more likely than not that all deferred tax assets will be realized.  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (in millions)

December 31, 

2010

December 31, 

2009

assets

Invested Assets $                 634.4 $                 594.2

Other Assets                    310.3                   250.3

Separate Accounts          3,520.2                   3,477.4

Total Assets $              4,464.9 $              4,321.9

liabilities

Policy and Claim Liabilities $                 548.9 $                 487.0

Other Liabilities 154.1 120.1

Separate Accounts 3,520.2 3,477.4

Total Liabilities $              4,223.2 $              4,084.5

  

stockholders’ equity

Total Capital $                 205.7 $                205.7

Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) (14.1) (15.5)

Retained Earnings 50.1 47.2

Total Stockholders’ Equity $               $241.7 $                237.4

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $              4,464.9 $             4,321.9
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ASSETS

Total assets of $4.5 billion at December 31, 2010 increased by $143.0 million when compared to the 
year ended December 31, 2009. A portion of the increase was due to the fact that fixed income security 
purchases exceeded disposals by $28.6 million in 2010 along with an $8.1 million increase in net unreal-
ized gains on the Company’s fixed income portfolio from December 31, 2009.  Separate Account assets 
increased by $42.8 million when compared to December 31, 2009.  An increase in Separate Account W1 
assets of $95.5 million was driven primarily by new deposits in the first quarter of 2010.  The increase in 
Separate Account W1 assets was partially offset by decreases in Separate Account A & M assets of $34.0 
million.  Also contributing to the overall asset increase was a $16.2 million increase in premiums receiv-
able, primarily due to the premium growth in the P&C business unit.

LIABILITIES

Total liabilities of $4.2 billion at December 31, 2010 increased by $138.7 million when compared to the 
year ended December 31, 2009.  Total policy and claim liabilities increased by $61.9 million primarily 
due to increased new business volume in P&C operations which resulted in higher claim and unearned 
premium liabilities. Also adding to the overall increase was the Separate Account increase of $42.8 mil-
lion noted above.

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Stockholders’ Equity of $241.7 million at December 31, 2010 increased by $4.3 million from December 
31, 2009.  The overall increase was due to a combination of consolidated net income of $7.4 million, 
a $5.4 million increase in net unrealized gains on the Company’s investment portfolio (net of deferred 
taxes) and a decrease in equity of $3.9 million due to the calculation of future pension liabilities related 
to the Accounting Standard Codification 715 (Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans) 
adjustment.  Offsetting the net increase above was a $4.6 million shareholder dividend payment in the 
second quarter of 2010. Including the Accounting Standard Codification 320 (valuing available-for-sale 
securities at market) adjustment, the December 31, 2010 book value per share is $26.41. Excluding this 
adjustment, the December 31, 2010 book value per share would have been $24.94. Book value per share 
increased from the December 31, 2009 book value of $25.94 (Accounting Standard Codification 320 ad-
justment included) due to the items noted previously.  
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Financial Results by Business Unit (in Millions)December 31,

Life and Health 2010 YTD 2009 YTD

Direct Written Premium 111.3$             96.3$               
Assumed Written Premium 38.7                 61.6                 
Ceded Written Premium (4.7)                 (6.9)                 
Net Written Premium 145.3$             151.0$             
Net Earned Premium 145.3$             151.0$             
Fee Based Income 3.1                   3.5                   
Net Investment Income 9.5                   9.4                   
Realized Gains on Investments 1.6                   0.3                   
Other Income -                    0.2                   
Total Income 159.5$             164.4$             

Benefits and Claims Expenses 102.3$             112.5$             
Sales, General and Administrative Expenses 38.2                 37.9                 
Commissions 2.1                   2.9                   
Taxes, Licenses and Fees 2.6                   2.0                   
Total Expenses 145.2$             155.3$             

Pre-tax Net Income (1)
14.3$               9.1$                 

Financial Ratios (2)

Loss Ratio 70% 75%
SG&A Expense Ratio 26% 25%
Commission Ratio 1% 2%
TL&F Expense Ratio 2% 1%

(1) Pre-tax Net Income includes Non-Recurring Transactions and Exited Lines.
(2) All ratios are calculated as a percentage of Net Earned Premium.

                   December 31,

life and health 2010 ytD 2009 ytD

Direct Written Premium $             111.3 $               96.3 

Assumed Written Premium  38.7  61.6 

Ceded Written Premium  (4.7)  (6.9)

Net Written Premium $             145.3 $             151.0 

Net Earned Premium $             145.3 $             151.0 

Fee Based Income  3.1  3.5 

Net Investment Income  9.5  9.4 

Realized Gains on Investments  1.6  0.3 

Other Income  -  0.2 

Total Income $             159.5 $             164.4 

Benefits and Claims Expenses $             102.3 $             112.5 

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses  38.2  37.9 

Commissions  2.1  2.9 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees  2.6  2.0 

Total Expenses $             145.2 $             155.3 

Pre-tax Net Income (1) $               14.3 $                 9.1 

financial Ratios (2)

Loss Ratio 70% 75%

SG&A Expense Ratio 26% 25%

Commission Ratio 1% 2%

TL&F Expense Ratio 2% 1%

(1) Pre-tax Net Income includes Non-Recurring Transactions and Exited Lines.

(2) All ratios are calculated as a percentage of Net Earned Premium.



YEAR IN REVIEW  |  2010  |  7  |  

Life and Health Divisions

The Life and Health business unit, which includes continuing lines of Group Life, Medical Stop Loss, 
Specialty Health, Direct Marketing and no longer actively marketed lines of Individual Life and Health 
and Group Health, recorded a pre-tax gain of $14.3 million and $9.1 million, respectively, for the twelve 
months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.  The increase in earnings is primarily due to improved un-
derwriting results.

Revenue (net earned premium + fee income) in 2010 was $148.4 million compared to $154.5 million in 
the prior year.  The decline in revenue in 2010 is primarily within the Group Life ($4.4 million), Specialty 
Health ($1.3 million), and Individual Life and Health ($1.1 million) lines.  Revenue from continuing lines 
was $143.3 million compared to $147.8 million in the prior year.

Net investment income in 2010 was $9.5 million compared to $9.4 million in the prior year.  Realized 
gains from the sale of invested assets in 2010 were $1.6 million compared to $0.3 million in the prior year.  

The current year loss ratio of 70% reflects a decrease over the prior year loss ratio of 75%.  The decrease 
is primarily driven by favorable underwriting results for Medical Stop Loss which had a loss ratio of 64% 
compared to 69% in the prior year and Group Life which had a loss ratio of 84% compared to 88% in the 
prior year.

Group Life and Health Products

Group Life and Health, which includes Medical Stop Loss, Group Life, Specialty Health and exited 
Group Health products, recorded a pre-tax gain of $13.0 million and $8.3 million, respectively, for 
the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. 

Revenue (net earned premium + fee income) in 2010 was $128.2 million compared to $133.0 mil-
lion in the prior year.  The decline in revenue in 2010 by product line is: Group Life ($4.4 million), 
Specialty Health ($1.3 million), and Exited Lines ($0.5 million).

   
Net investment income in 2010 was $5.4 million compared to $5.2 million in the prior year.  Real-
ized gains from the sale of invested assets in 2010 were $1.0 million compared to $0.2 million in 
the prior year.  

The loss ratio for 2010 was 72% as compared to the prior year loss ratio of 77%.  The decrease is 
primarily driven by favorable underwriting results in Medical Stop Loss and Group Life.

SG&A Expenses in 2010 were $27.8 million compared to $25.4 million in the prior year.  The 
increase in expenses is primarily due to the $3.5 million write-off of previously capitalized soft-
ware development costs related to a policy administration system, partially offset by a $0.8 mil-
lion decrease in reinsurance assumed expenses, resulting from the decrease in Stop Loss premium 
assumed from fronting carriers.
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Direct Marketing Products

Direct Marketing recorded a pre-tax gain of $2.0 million and $1.9 million, respectively, for the 
twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Revenue (net earned premium + fee income) in 2010 was $16.5 million compared to $16.7 million 
in the prior year.

The loss ratio was 50% and 52%, respectively, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 
and 2009.

SG&A Expenses increased to $8.7 million compared to $8.4 million in the prior year.  The increase 
is the result of increased personnel costs required to support growth initiatives.

The net DAC (Deferred Acquisition Costs) Asset increased from $18.5 million at December 31, 
2009 to $18.8 million at December 31, 2010.

Individual Life and Health Products

Individual Life includes legacy Life and Health products that are not currently marketed. This 
product line recorded a pre-tax loss of $0.7 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 
2010 compared to a pre-tax loss of $1.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009.  
The prior year results include significant development costs associated with an Individual Agency 
initiative.

Overall, the legacy Individual Life and Health products performed worse than expected.  The 
current year loss ratio was 123% compared to the prior year loss ratio of 78%.  The increase in 
the loss ratio, compared to the prior year, was due to unfavorable underwriting experience for the 
Home Healthcare block, an assumed block of Individual Term Life policies, and the Universal Life 
product line.
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December 31,

property and casualty 2010 ytD 2009 ytD

Direct Written Premium $             161.6 $               74.4 

Assumed Written Premium  59.5  52.2 

Ceded Written Premium  (83.7)  (22.1)

Net Written Premium $             137.4 $             104.5 

Change in Unearned Premium  (7.5)  (8.9)

Net Earned Premium $             129.9 $               95.6 

Fee Based Income  0.1  0.3 

Net Investment Income  10.0  8.3 

Realized Gains on Investments  2.2  0.3 

Total Income $             142.2 $             104.5 

Benefits and Claims Expenses $               80.7 $               58.5 

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses  22.0  16.1 

Commissions  22.7  17.6 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees  6.4  3.4 

Total Expenses $             131.8 $               95.6 

Pre-tax Net Income (1) $               10.4 $                 8.9 

financial Ratios (2)

Loss Ratio 62% 61%

SG&A Expense Ratio 17% 17%

Commission Ratio 17% 18%

TL&F Expense Ratio 5% 4%

(1) Pre-tax Net Income includes Non-Recurring Transactions and Exited Lines.

(2) All ratios are calculated as a percentage of Net Earned Premium.
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Property and Casualty Division

Property and Casualty operations recorded a pre-tax gain of $10.4 million and $8.9 million for the twelve 
months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Gross written premium grew to $221.1 million in 2010 from $126.6 million in 2009, an increase of 75%.  
The increase in gross written premium was due to new sales and program expansion, particularly within 
the Workers’ Compensation and Surety lines of business.  The increase in gross written premium also re-
flects an expanded fronting relationship with a new partner.

gross Written premium  

(in millions)

ytD 

 12/31/10

ytD  

12/31/09

growth 

percentage

Fiduciary  $27.8  $27.2 2%

Union Liability  $11.2  $10.9 2%

Workers’ Compensation  $136.5  $50.5 170%

Commercial  $28.1  $27.8 1%

Surety  $17.5  $10.1 74%

Other  $0.0    $0.1 -87%

Total  $221.1  $126.6 75%

Net earned premium increased in 2010 to $129.9 million compared to $95.6 million in the prior year, an 
increase of 36%.  The increase in net earned premium is the result of sales growth over the past two years.  

Net investment income increased in 2010 to $10.0 million compared to $8.3 million in the prior year, an 
increase of 20%.  The increase in investment income is the result of an increase in invested assets from the 
significant growth over the past two years.  Realized gains from the sale of invested assets in 2010 were 
$2.2 million compared to $0.3 million in the prior year.  

SG&A expenses were $22.0 million in 2010 compared to $16.1 million in 2009.  SG&A expenses were 
impacted by increased costs related to growth initiatives as well as bad debt write-offs in the Work-
ers’ Compensation line of business related to a former managing general underwriter ($3.8 million). The 
SG&A expense ratio was 17% of premium at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.  Excluding the 
bad debt adjustment, the current year SG&A expense ratio was 14% of premium at December 31, 2010 
compared to 17% of premium at December 31, 2009.
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Investment Services Division

Investment Services recorded a pre-tax gain of $8.7 million and $12.1 million, respectively, for the twelve 
months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

  Overall results have been impacted by the following:

•	 The second quarter of 2010 included a net non-recurring expense of $4.7 million related to a settle-
ment of legacy litigation matters.

•	 Limited partnership investments produced a pre-tax gain of $0.5 million in 2010 compared to a 
pre-tax loss of $1.1 million in the prior year.

•	 Net investment income and realized gains (excluding limited partnership investments) have in-
creased by $0.5 million compared to the prior year.  The current year results were impacted by 
realized gains from the sale of invested assets in the 4th quarter of 2010. The prior year results were 
adversely impacted by a retrospective income adjustment on a reverse mortgage in the Union La-
bor Life portfolio.  

•	 Benefits and claims expenses in the annuity products have decreased compared to the prior year.  This 
is the result of current year favorable mortality and prior year reserve strengthening of $0.5 million. 

•	 SG&A Expenses (excluding the settlement of legacy litigation matters) are flat compared to the prior 
year.  Current year expenses have been impacted by a reduction in legal fees partially offset by growth 
initiatives and the inability to defer loan origination costs, due to a decrease in loan production.

December 31,

investment services 2010 ytD 2009 ytD

Fee Based Income  $              35.6  $              37.1 

Net Investment Income  6.5  5.4 

Realized Gains on Investments  1.0  0.2 

Total Income  $              43.1  $              42.7 

Benefits and Claims Expenses  $                3.9  $                4.9 

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses  30.4  25.7 

Taxes, Licenses and Fees  0.1  - 

Total Expenses  $              34.4  $              30.6 

Pre-tax Net Income (1)  $                8.7  $              12.1 

Third Party Assets Under Management  $         4,942.2  $         4,743.2 

(1) Pre-tax Net Income includes Non-Recurring Transactions and Exited Lines.
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Real Estate Investment Group (“REIG”) Products
REIG, which includes Separate Account J, Separate Account U and Separate Account W1, re-
corded a pre-tax gain of $10.7 million and $13.6 million for the twelve months ended December 
31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.    REIG gross fee income decreased in 2010 to $26.4 million com-
pared to $28.2 million in the prior year, due to the reduced fee received for the management of the 
account.  Effective July 1, 2010, the Company decided to temporarily waive 10% of the investment 
management fee for Separate Account J.  The Company had also elected to waive the management 
fee charged to investors in Separate Account W1, effective January 1, 2010 until further notice.  
Separate Account J assets under management remained flat at $3.3 billion between December 
31, 2010 and 2009.  SG&A expenses were $15.7 million and $14.6 million, respectively, for the 
twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.  The increase is primarily due to the inability 
to defer loan origination costs due to a decrease in loan production.

Advisory Services (excluding REIG) Products
Advisory Services, excluding REIG and non-recurring transactions, recorded a pre-tax loss of $0.6 
million and $1.6 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  
Gross fee income increased in 2010 to $8.3 million compared to $8.1 million in the prior year, 
primarily due to an increase in new deposits within the International Funds. Assets under manage-
ment increased to $1.5 billion from $1.3 billion between December 31, 2009 and 2010. SG&A Ex-
penses (including sub-advisor fees), decreased from $9.8 million to $9.0 million during the  twelve 
months ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.  Sub-advisor expenses 
increased from $3.5 million to $4.7 million, as a result of the increase in assets under management.  
Legal fees decreased from $1.2 million to $0.6 million.

Limited Partnership Investments (“LP”) Products
Limited partnerships (excluding the Company’s seed money contribution in Separate Account 
U) generated a pre-tax gain of $0.5 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 
compared to a pre-tax loss of $1.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009.  The 
Company’s portfolio of LP holdings (excluding the Company’s investment in Separate Account U) 
was $4.1 million as of December 31, 2010.  

Annuity Products
The Annuity products, which consist of Guaranteed Investment Contracts (“GIC”), Group Annui-
ties (“GANN”) and Reverse Mortgage Annuities (“RANN”), recorded a pre-tax gain of $2.7 mil-
lion for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 compared to a pre-tax gain of $1.2 million 
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009. The improved results are due to the decline in 
benefits and claims expenses.

Consolidated Company Owned Assets
The Company has no investment in subprime or Alt-A mortgage-backed securities, derivatives, 
credit default swaps or commercial mortgage backed securities and minimal equity exposure.
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Investment Results

(in millions) 

December 31, 

2010

December 31, 

2009

Investment Income:

Fixed Maturities $      25.7 $        23.9 

Mortgage Loans held for investments 1.0 1.2

Limited Partnerships* 0.3 (0.6) 

Cash Equivalents  - 0.1 

Other  - 0.1

Investment Expenses      (1.1) (1.1)

Total net investment income 25.9 23.6 

Investment interest credited to 

contract holders (3.4) (3.9)

Realized investment gains 4.8 0.8

Investment income from operations      $      27.3 $        20.5 

*The limited partnership category above includes investment income from the Company’s seed money 
contribution in Separate Account U.

Investment Outlook

The Company believes that investment income will remain steady over the next year.  The net investment 
income yield is 4.7% compared to 4.1% for the prior period.   Excluding limited partnership income and 
the Q2-2010 retrospective adjustment on Structured Reverse Mortgages, the net investment income yield 
is 4.7% compared to 4.4% for the prior period.

Capital Resources and Liquidity

The Company’s capital management framework is designed to ensure that the Company maintains suf-
ficient capital consistent with the Company’s risk profile, all applicable regulatory standards and guide-
lines, and external rating agency considerations.  The capital management process is overseen by senior 
management and is continuously reviewed at the legal entity level.  Capital is generated principally via 
earnings.  It is used primarily to support growth in the Company businesses.  Excess capital is used to pay 
dividends to stockholders and to fund future growth.
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Liquidity refers to the ability of an enterprise to generate adequate amounts of cash from its normal opera-
tions to meet cash requirements with a prudent margin of safety.  The Company’s principal sources of cash 
flow from operating activities are insurance premiums, investment advisory fees and investment income, 
while investing cash flows originate from maturities and sales of invested assets. The Company uses cash 
to pay policy claims and benefits, operating expenses, commissions and taxes.  Cash is also used to pur-
chase new investments and pay dividends to the Company’s shareholders.  The Consolidated Statement 
of Cash Flows indicates that cash provided by operating activities was $40.8 million and $64.7 million 
for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  This Statement also classifies the other 
sources and uses of cash by investing activities and financing activities and discloses the amount of cash 
available at the end of the period to meet those obligations.

When considering the Company’s liquidity and cash flow it is important to distinguish between the needs 
of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries, which include Union Labor Life and Ullico Casualty and the 
needs of the holding company, Ullico Inc.  As a holding company with no operations of its own, Ullico 
Inc. derives its cash primarily from its operating subsidiaries, as described below. 

On January 31, 2011, Ullico Inc. entered into a stock purchase agreement to sell Ulico Standard of Amer-
ica Casualty Company, (“USA Casualty”) a wholly-owned subsidiary.  The consummation of the sale is 
subject to the approval by the California Insurance Department.

Union Labor Life, on behalf of Separate Account J, executed a $50.0 million credit facility with Canadian 
Imperial Bank of Commerce (“CIBC”) in May of 2008. In January of 2009, Union Labor Life, on behalf 
of Separate Account J, successfully negotiated a $50.0 million increase to $100.0 million on its line of 
credit with CIBC, which was secured solely by the assets of Separate Account J.  

Union Labor Life finalized a revolving credit facility agreement with the International Brotherhood of 
Teamsters Voluntary Employee Benefits Trust (“Borrower”) for a maximum amount of $2.0 million.  The 
Borrower had until December 31, 2010 to make draws on the credit facility. Union Labor Life renewed the 
credit facility through December 31, 2011.  No draws were taken in 2010 or 2009.

The liquidity resources of the holding company are principally comprised of dividends, limited partnership 
investment distributions, investment income and expense reimbursements from its operating subsidiaries.

On July 29, 2010, approval from the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Maryland was granted to 
dividend $5.0 million from Union Labor Life to Ullico Inc. The dividend to Ullico Inc. from Union Labor 
Life was paid on October 22, 2010. 

On September 30, 2009, approval from the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Maryland was 
granted to dividend $15.0 million from Union Labor Life to Ullico Inc. The dividend to Ullico Inc. from 
Union Labor Life was paid on October 1, 2009. 

On August 25, 2009, the Board of Directors of USA Casualty declared a dividend to its parent, Ullico Inc., in 
the amount of $5.0 million subject to approval by the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of California 
(“the Commissioner”).  Approval from the Commissioner was granted on November 3, 2009 for a $4.0 mil-
lion dividend.  The $4.0 million dividend to Ullico Inc. from USA Casualty was paid on November 4, 2009.
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Consolidated cash flow activity summarized by cash flow category for the periods ending December 31, 
2010 and 2009 is as follows (in millions):

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Cash provided by operating activities                $        40.8                  $       64.7       

Cash used in investing activities                    (30.4)                   (100.0)    

Cash used in financing activities                      (8.8)                    (10.8)

Net Change in Cash           $          1.6           $      (46.1)

OTHER MATTERS

Other Factors Affecting Our Business

In general, our businesses are subject to a changing social, economic, legal, legislative and regulatory 
environment.  Although the eventual effect on the Company of the changing environment in which we op-
erate remains uncertain, these factors and others could have a material effect on our results of operations, 
liquidity and capital resources.

INFORMATION ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 
Any statement contained in this report which is not a historical fact, or which might otherwise be consid-
ered an opinion or projection concerning the Company or its business, whether expressed or implied, is 
meant as and should be considered a forward-looking statement as that term is defined in the Private Se-
curities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements are based on assumptions and opin-
ions concerning a variety of known and unknown risks, including but not necessarily limited to changes 
in market conditions, natural disasters and other catastrophic events, increased competition, changes in 
availability and cost of reinsurance, changes in governmental regulations, technological changes, political 
and legal contingencies and general economic conditions, as well as other risks and uncertainties. If any 
of these assumptions or opinions proves incorrect, any forward-looking statements made on the basis of 
such assumptions or opinions may also prove materially incorrect in one or more respects and may cause 
actual future results to differ materially from those contemplated, projected, estimated or budgeted in such 
forward-looking statements.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
 
The Company’s objectives in managing its investment portfolio are to maximize investment income and 
investment returns while minimizing overall credit risk. Investment strategies are developed by manage-
ment with final approval by the Board of Directors. Market risk represents the potential for loss due to 
adverse changes in the fair value of securities. The market risk related to the Company’s fixed maturity 
portfolio is primarily interest rate risk and prepayment risk. The market risk related to the Company’s 
equity portfolio is equity price risk.



|  16  |  SolutionS for the union workplace

Controls and Procedures
 
The Company has evaluated the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered 
by Management’s Report. The evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation 
of the Company’s Disclosure Committee and Management, including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer, Controller, and the Enterprise Risk Manager. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and 
procedures are effective. 

There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting identified 
in connection with the foregoing evaluation that occurred during the Company’s last fiscal year that have 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over fi-
nancial reporting.

2010 Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of Ullico Inc. and its subsidiaries (“the Company”) is responsible for establishing and main-
taining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a 
process designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal executive and financial officers and 
affected by the Company’s board of directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable as-
surance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exter-
nal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

• Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac-
tions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

• Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of fi-
nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipt and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and

• Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 
31, 2010, based on the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal Control-Integrated Frame-
work, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such 
evaluation, management has concluded that Ullico’s internal control over financial reporting was effective 
as of December 31, 2010. 
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The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010 has been audited 
by Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent auditors, as stated in their report which appears herein.

2010 Management Report on Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to 
the Company, including its subsidiaries, is made known to the officers responsible for financial reporting, 
other members of senior management and to the board of directors. Based upon their evaluation of the 
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures the principle executive and  financial 
officers have concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that the infor-
mation required to be disclosed by the Company is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within 
the appropriate time periods. 

The Company intends to review and evaluate the design and effectiveness of its disclosure controls and 
procedures on an ongoing basis. The Company intends to make all necessary improvements in controls 
and procedures and correct any deficiencies that may be discovered in the future in order to ensure that 
senior management has timely access to all material financial and non-financial information concerning 
the Company’s business. While the present design of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures is 
effective to achieve these results, future events affecting the Company’s business may cause management 
to modify its disclosure controls and procedures.

David J. Barra 
Senior Vice president 
chief financial officer

edward M. Smith 
president & chief executive 
officer
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Ullico Inc.  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(in thousands)

December 31, 

2010

December 31, 

2009

 assets 

 Fixed maturity and debt securities, at fair value  
   (amortized cost of $582,578 and $549,557)

$                  603,317 $                  562,191

 Equity securities, at fair value (cost of $57 and $362) 4 154

 Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations 16,995 16,915

 Mortgage loans, held for investment 14,071 14,896

   Total Investments $                  634,387 $                  594,156

 Cash and cash equivalents                  43,216                    41,609

 Accrued investment income 4,846 4,632

 Premiums, accounts and notes receivable 65,723 49,538

 Reinsurance recoverable 97,170 54,135

 Property and equipment 12,200 15,323

 Goodwill, net 3,205 3,205

 Deferred policy acquisition costs 29,272 27,493

 Current income tax recoverable                     4,167                                       191               

 Deferred income tax  35,460 39,818

 Other assets 15,032 14,491

 Separate account assets 3,520,193 3,477,363

 total assets $               4,464,871                 $               4,321,954                 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(in thousands, except share amounts)

December 31,            December 31,

2010            2009

 liabilities 

 Policy and claim reserves: 

   Life, accident and health and annuities $                 194,869 $                 196,613                        

   Property and casualty 210,774 153,397

 Deposit-type annuity contracts 94,461 95,574

 Policyholder funds on deposit 3,391 3,374

 Policyholder dividends payable 3,084 3,410

 Unearned and advance premiums 42,332 34,683

   Total Policy Liabilities 548,911 487,051

 Accounts payable and other liabilities 47,919 29,429

 Reinsurance balances payable 14,901 9,782

 Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits 91,209 80,888

 Separate account liabilities 3,520,193 3,477,363

total liabilities $              4,223,133 $              4,084,513

stocKholDeRs’ eQuity

 Capital stock ($25 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized; issued and 
   outstanding 251,351 at 12/31/10 and 12/31/09) 

6,284 6,284

 Class A common stock, voting ($1 par value; 12,000,000  shares authorized; 
   issued and outstanding 8,148,483 at 12/31/10 and 12/31/09) 

8,148 8,148

 Class B common stock, nonvoting ($1 par value; 12,000,000 shares authorized; 
   issued and outstanding 753,485 at 12/31/10 and 12/31/09) 

753 753

 Additional capital paid-in 190,524 190,524

 Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss):

   Unrealized investment gains, net of deferred tax                                                                                     13,434 8,066

   Pension liability adjustment, net of deferred tax          (27,475) (23,559)

   Accumulated other comprehensive loss (14,041) (15,493)

 Retained earnings  50,070 47,225

total stocKholDeRs’ eQuity $                 241,738 $                 237,441

total liabilities and stocKholDeRs’ eQuity $              4,464,871 $              4,321,954

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 

OF OPERATIONS 
 (in thousands)

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009

incoMe

 Premium income: 

   Life, accident and health and annuities $                 145,338 $                 150,926

   Property and casualty 129,923 95,592

 Fee based income 38,740 40,914

 Net investment income 25,911 23,622

 Net realized investment gains   4,820   756

 Other income 2,423 4,406

total incoMe 347,155 316,216

benefits and eXpenses

 Life, accident and health and annuities 101,501 112,788

 Interest credited to policyholder account balances 3,529 3,869

 Losses and loss adjustment expenses - property and casualty 80,667 58,505

 Policyholder dividends 1,159 746

   Total policy benefits and claims expenses 186,856 175,908

 Commissions 24,768 20,489

 Sales, general and administrative expenses 120,437 114,699

 Net change in deferred acquisition costs (1,779)  (2,914)

 Taxes, licenses and fees 9,185 5,450

total benefits and eXpenses 339,467 313,632

Net income before federal and state income taxes 7,688 2,584

  Income tax expense (266) (899)

net incoMe $                     7,422 $                     1,685 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 

 STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

capital stock class a  
common stock

class b 
common stock

Balance, January 1, 2009  $              6,284  $              8,149  $                 753 

Redemption of capital stock (1)

Balance, December 31, 2009  $              6,284  $              8,148  $                 753 

Balance, December 31, 2010   $              6,284  $              8,148  $                 753 

additional capital 
paid-in

cumulative other 
comprehensive 
income/(loss)

Retained  
earnings total

Balance, January 1, 2009  $          189,305     $           (15,268)  $            51,345      $       240,568   

Net income 1,685 1,685

Change in unrealized gain on investments, net 3,184 3,184

Change in pension liability, net (3,409) (3,409)

Total comprehensive income 1,460

Dividend to shareholders (4,577) (4,577)

Redemption of capital stock (9) (10)

Other 1,228 (1,228) -

Balance, December 31, 2009 $          190,524     $           (15,493) $            47,225     $       237,441   

Net income 7,422 7,422

Change in unrealized gain on investments, net 5,368 5,368

Change in pension liability, net (3,916) (3,916)

Total comprehensive income   8,874

Dividend to shareholders (4,577) (4,577)

Balance, December 31, 2010    $          190,524      $          (14,041)  $            50,070     $       241,738   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ullico Inc.
 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 

OF CASH FLOWS  
(in thousands)

December 31, December 31,
2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $                     7,422 $                     1,685

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

  Interest credited to policyholder account balances 3,093 3,282

  Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 27,435 26,085

  Capitalization of deferred policy acquisition costs (29,214) (28,999)

  Amortization and depreciation expense 6,203 2,155

  Deferred income taxes 1,467 (641)

  Realized (gains)/losses on investments, net (4,820) (756)

  Non-cash (gains)/losses on limited partnership investments, net  (534)     626

  Change in premiums, accounts and notes receivable (16,185) (12,188)

  Change in reinsurance recoverable/payable (37,916) 53,197

  Change in policy liabilities 62,956 20,598

  Change in accounts payable and other liabilities 24,895  (3,643) 

  Change in current income tax recoverable/payable (3,976) 5,612

  Other, net  (63)  (2,273)

Cash provided by operating activities $                   40,763     $                   64,740

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments:

  Fixed maturities 173,686 185,312

  Mortgage loans 825  5,133

  Limited partnerships 458 498

Purchases of investments:

  Fixed maturities (202,253) (282,519)

  Limited partnerships (4)  (103) 

Purchases of property and equipment                    (3,098)                    (8,225)

Other, net (3) (112)

Cash used in investing activities:  $                  (30,389)  $                (100,016)

Cash flows from financing activities

  Investment product deposits 12,538 10,964

  Investment product withdrawals (16,728) (17,213)

  Redemption of common stock     -          (10)

  Dividends paid to shareholders (4,577) (4,577)

Cash used in financing activities $                    (8,767) $                  (10,836)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1,607 (46,112)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 41,609 87,721

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $                   43,216 $                   41,609

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 1---Organization and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ullico Inc., a privately held specialty insurance 
and investments holding company serving the union workplace, and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Ullico” or “the Company”).  
Ullico’s primary wholly owned subsidiaries include The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (“Union Labor Life”), Ullico 
Casualty Company (“Ullico Casualty”) and Ullico Investment Advisors, Inc.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“GAAP”).  All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  The 
preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual amounts could differ from these estimates due to a number of factors, including changes in the level of mortality, 
morbidity, interest rates and asset valuations, and such differences could occur in the near term.  

Nature of Operations
Union Labor Life was founded in 1925 by the officials of the American Federation of Labor to provide low cost insurance 
protection to union members and their collectively bargained union benefit plans. Ullico Inc. was formed in 1987 to facilitate 
the restructuring of the insurance subsidiaries and to enable the Company to expand its investment services capabilities through 
non-insurance subsidiaries.  Ownership of Ullico’s stock is restricted to international and national trade unions, their members, 
their members’ benefit funds, the Company’s pension plan and directors and officers of the Company.

The activities of the Company cover a broad range of insurance and financial products and services provided principally to 
Labor unions, their members and employers of union members, including life and health insurance, property and casualty insur-
ance, investment advisory services, asset management and mortgage banking and servicing activities. and mortgage banking 
and servicing activities. 

Note 2---Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Invested Assets
Fixed maturity debt securities are designated “available for sale” and are reported at fair value.  The fair value of fixed maturity 
securities is based upon independent market quotations.  Other than securities that are other than temporarily impaired, changes 
in fair value of securities designated as available for sale, net of deferred income taxes, are recorded as a separate component of 
stockholders’ equity, and accordingly have no effect on net income.  Cash received from maturities and pay downs is reflected 
as a component of proceeds from sales and maturities of investments in the statements of cash flows.

Equity securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks and are recorded at fair value based on independent 
market quotations, if available.  If independent market quotations are not available, fair values are based on estimates which 
utilize other valuation techniques.  Except for securities that are other than temporarily impaired, the difference between cost 
and fair value, net of deferred income taxes, is recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, and accordingly has 
no effect on net income.

Limited partnership investments and limited liability corporations are recorded in accordance with the equity method of ac-
counting.  

ULLICO Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009
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Mortgage loans are carried at unpaid principal balances, less impairment reserves.  For mortgage loans considered impaired, a 
specific reserve is established.  A reserve is also established for probable losses arising from the portfolio but not attributable to 
specific loans.  Mortgage loans are considered impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect amounts 
due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  When a mortgage loan has been determined to be impaired, a 
reserve is established for the difference between the unpaid principal of the mortgage loan and its fair value.  Fair value is based 
on the lower of either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the mortgage loan’s effective interest rate or 
the fair value of the underlying collateral.  Changes in the mortgage valuation reserves are reflected in realized gains or losses.  

Cash equivalents include money market funds and other investments whose maturities at the time of acquisition were ninety 
days or less.  These investments are carried at fair market value.

Declines in the fair value of invested assets below cost are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment losses.   The portfo-
lio of investments is reviewed on a quarterly basis to determine if an other-than-temporary decline in value has occurred.  The 
decision to impair a security incorporates both quantitative criteria and qualitative information.  A number of items factor into 
the “impairment” decision including, but not limited to:  (a) materiality and length of unrealized loss; (b) the financial condition 
of the issuer; (c) the business plan and trend of the issuer; (d) general market conditions and industry or sector specific factors; 
(e) interest rate environment and (f) whether the Company intends to sell or thinks it is more likely than not it will be required 
to sell the security prior to recovery.  

If the fair value of a fixed maturity security declines in value below the Company’s amortized cost and the Company intends 
to sell or determines that it will more likely than not be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, 
management considers the security to be other than temporarily impaired and reports its decline in fair value as a realized in-
vestment loss in the consolidated statement of operations as the difference between carrying value and fair value.  If, however, 
the Company does not intend to sell the security, determines that it is not more likely than not that it will be required to do so, 
declines in the fair value that are considered in the judgment of management to be other than temporary are separated into the 
amounts representing credit losses and the amounts related to other factors.  Amounts representing credit losses are reported 
as realized investment losses in the consolidated statement of operations and amounts related to other factors are included as a 
component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of the related income tax benefit.  The amount of credit loss 
is determined by discounting the security’s expected cash flows at its effective interest rate at the time of acquisition.  Declines 
in the fair value of all other investments that are considered in the judgment of management to be other than temporary are 
reported as realized investment losses in the consolidated statement of operations.

Policy and Claim Reserves and Policyholder Contract Deposits
Life and health insurance products consist principally of group insurance policies.  Most of the Company’s group life and health 
insurance policies are participating.  Therefore, in addition to guaranteed benefits, they pay dividends, as declared annually by 
the Company based on its experience.  The group life and health insurance claim reserves are based on projections of historical 
claim development.  The policy reserves are based on assumptions for mortality and morbidity, utilizing interest rates ranging 
from 2.25% to 6.0%. 

Investment-type annuity products consist primarily of guaranteed investment contracts (“GICs”) and single premium annuity 
contracts.  Annuity reserves consist principally of liabilities for group pension funds that are deposited on behalf of groups to 
provide immediate and future retirement benefits to group members.
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Policy reserves and policyholder contract deposits on annuity and universal life insurance products are determined following 
the retrospective deposit method and consist of policy account values that accrue to the benefit of the policyholder, before de-
duction of surrender charges.

The reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses for property and casualty insurance policies include estimates for losses 
and claims reported prior to the balance sheet date, estimates of claims incurred but not reported based on projections of histori-
cal loss developments with consideration given to the risk share arrangements with agents and underwriters that are expected 
to result in losses that trend below general industry results, and estimates of expenses for investigating, defending and adjust-
ing all incurred and unadjusted claims.  Actual amounts could differ from these estimates if these assumptions do not occur 
as expected. Reserves are continually monitored and reviewed, and any adjustments to historical estimates are reflected in the 
current period consolidated statement of operations.

Fee Based Income
Fee based income consists primarily of revenue generated from administrative services and investment management and main-
tenance fees. Administrative service fees provided to third parties for claims processing and benefit plan administration were 
approximately $3.2 million and $3.8 million for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  In addition, fee 
based income includes investment management and maintenance fees charged to Separate Accounts and third parties. Invest-
ment management and maintenance fees were approximately $35.5 million and $37.1 million for the periods ended December 
31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Premiums, Charges and Benefits
Premiums for life and accident and health policies are generally recognized when due.  Premiums for property and casualty are 
earned over the contract term.  Benefit claims (including an estimated provision for claims incurred but not reported), benefit 
reserve changes, and expenses (except deferred policy acquisition costs) are charged to income as incurred.  

Deposits for certain investment-type annuity and universal life insurance contracts are treated as liabilities rather than as premi-
ums.  Revenues for investment-type products consist of policy charges for the cost of insurance, policy initiation, administra-
tion and surrenders during the period.  Expenses include interest credited to policy account balances and benefit payments made 
in excess of policy account balances.  Credited interest rates ranged from 1.75% to 6.5% in 2010 and 2009.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs
The costs that vary with and are primarily related to the production of certain new business have been deferred and recorded 
as deferred policy acquisition costs (“DAC”) to the extent deemed recoverable.  Such costs include commissions and certain 
costs of underwriting, policy issue and direct marketing. DAC associated with property and casualty insurance is amortized 
to expense as premiums are earned.  For traditional life insurance products, DAC is amortized to income in proportion to the 
estimated premiums on such business.  For annuity products, DAC is amortized to expense in relation to estimated gross profits.  
DAC is reviewed periodically for recoverability and written down when necessary.  Anticipated investment income is consid-
ered when determining if a premium deficiency relating to short-duration contracts exists.

Investment Income
Investment income primarily consists of interest, dividends and net investment income from limited partnership and limited 
liability corporation interests.  Interest is recognized on an accrual basis and dividends are recorded at the ex-dividend date.  
Income from limited partnership investments and limited liability corporations is recorded based on the equity method and 
earnings are included in investment income.

Realized gains and losses include gains and losses on investment dispositions and write downs in value due to other-than-
temporary declines in fair value.  Realized gains and losses on investment dispositions are determined on a specific identifica-
tion basis.
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Policyholder Dividends
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, approximately 99% of the Company’s in-force life and health business was written on a 
participating basis.  Dividends are earned by the policyholders ratably over the policy year. Dividends are included in the ac-
companying financial statements as a liability and as a charge to operations in the period incurred.

Reinsurance
The reinsurance recoverable amount reported includes amounts billed to reinsurers on paid policy life and accident and health 
benefits and claims and property and casualty losses, as well as estimates of amounts expected to be recovered from reinsurance 
on amounts that have not yet been paid. Reinsurance recoverables on unpaid policy benefits and claims are estimated based 
upon assumptions consistent with those utilized in establishing reserves.  Premiums, benefits and expenses are recorded net of 
experience refunds, reserve adjustments and amounts assumed from or ceded to reinsurers, including commission and expense 
allowances.  The reinsurance balances payable amount reported includes amounts billed from reinsurers for premiums ceded 
which were written by the Company.  

Separate Accounts
Union Labor Life maintains separate account assets and liabilities, representing net deposits and accumulated net investment 
earnings less fees, held primarily for the benefit of tax-qualified group pension contract holders, which are reported at fair value 
in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.  The Company does not bear the investment risk.  The assets consist primarily of 
equity securities, publicly traded long-term bonds, construction and permanent mortgages, real estate equity, cash equivalents 
and short-term investments.

For the Company’s investment in Separate Account U, it allocates its proportionate interest in the separate account assets to the 
corresponding captions in the Company’s balance sheet.  The Company receives its proportionate share of the income or loss 
of the assets of the separate account.  Income is generally reinvested in the separate account. 

Income Taxes
Current federal income taxes are charged or credited to operations based upon amounts estimated to be payable or recoverable 
as a result of taxable operations.  Deferred income tax assets have been recorded for temporary differences between the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the accompanying financial statements and those in the Company’s income tax returns.  A 
deferred tax asset valuation allowance is established if it is more likely than not that such an asset would not be realized.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.  Included in property and equipment 
are capitalized costs related to computer software licenses and software developed for internal use.  Depreciation is computed using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.  Estimated useful lives of depreciated assets are as 
follows: personal computers (3 years); printers, servers, mainframe equipment, software and furniture and fixtures (5 years).  
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the related lease term, rang-
ing from 5 to 10 years.  Accumulated depreciation on property and equipment was $29.4 million and $27.1 million at December 
31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.  Depreciation expense was $6.2 million and $2.2 million for the periods ended 
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  The Company reviews its property and equipment for impairment whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.  During 2010, the Company recorded a 
write-off of $3.5 million of previously capitalized software development costs related to a policy administration system.  The 
write-off was included in the sales, general and administrative expenses category on the consolidated statements of operations 
for the year ended December 31, 2010.
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Goodwill 
Goodwill of $3.2 million as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 represents the excess of purchase price over fair 
value of the net assets of acquired entities, net of $0.8 million of amortization recorded prior to 2002.  Management reviews 
the carrying value of goodwill to determine whether impairment may exist.  This review is done annually unless events suggest 
that an impairment may have occurred in the interim. 

Contingent Liabilities
Amounts related to contingent liabilities are accrued if it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount is reason-
ably estimable.  

Reserves for Litigation
The Company is subject to lawsuits in the normal course of business related to its insurance and non-insurance products.  At the 
time when pending or threatened litigation becomes known, management evaluates the merits of the case and, if the potential 
settlements or judgments are determined to be probable and estimable, a reserve is established in accordance with Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), 450-20, Contingencies, Loss Contingen-
cies.  These reserves may be adjusted as the case develops.  Periodically, and at least quarterly, management assesses all pend-
ing cases as a basis for evaluating reserve levels.  At that point, any necessary adjustments are made to applicable reserves as 
determined by management and are included in current operating results.  Reserves may be adjusted based upon outside coun-
sels’ advice regarding the laws and facts of the case, any revisions in the law applicable to the case, the results of depositions 
and/or other forms of discovery, general developments as the case progresses such as a favorable or an adverse trial court ruling, 
whether a verdict is rendered for or against the Company, whether management believes an appeal will be successful, or other 
factors that may affect the anticipated outcome of the case.  Management believes adequate reserves have been established in 
known cases.  However, due to the uncertainty of future events, there can be no assurance that actual outcomes will not differ 
from the assessments made by management.     

Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through April 21, 2011, the date the consolidated 
financial statements were available to be issued and has included the required disclosures in Note 16 of the consolidated finan-
cial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Fair Value Measurements

As of January 1, 2010, the Company adopted new guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) 
requiring additional disclosures regarding fair value measurements. This guidance requires entities to disclose (1) the amounts 
of significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, (2) the reasons for any transfers into or out of 
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and (3) additional information in the reconciliation of recurring Level 3 measurements about 
purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a gross basis.  The new guidance also clarifies existing fair value measurement 
disclosure requirements concerning the level of disaggregation and the disclosure of valuation inputs and techniques.  Except 
for the requirement to separately disclose purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a gross basis in the reconciliation of re-
curring Level 3 measurements, this guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2009.  The requirement to separately disclose purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a gross basis in the reconciliation 
of recurring Level 3 measurements is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010 and for interim periods with-
in those fiscal years. The adoption of this guidance did not have any effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or 
results of operations. The Company has included the required disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Deferred Acquisition Costs

In October of 2010, the FASB issued guidance limiting the extent to which an insurer may capitalize costs incurred in the ac-
quisition of an insurance contract. The guidance provides that, in order to be capitalized, such costs must be incremental and 
directly related to the acquisition of a new or renewal insurance contract.  Insurers may only capitalize costs related to success-
ful efforts in attaining a contract and advertising costs may only be capitalized if certain direct response advertising criteria are 
met.  This guidance will be effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011, with either 
prospective or retrospective adoption permitted. If the initial application of this guidance results in the capitalization of acquisi-
tion costs that had not been capitalized previously by an entity, the entity may elect not to capitalize those types of costs.  The 
Company has not yet determined the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its consolidated financial position 
or results of operations.

Note 3---Investment Securities 

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments as of December 31, 2010 
and December 31, 2009 are as follows (in millions):

 December 31, 2010

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized  

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

$          105.9 $            3.3 $             0.3 $           108.9

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and political subdivisions 
of states

92.4 1.2 0.7 92.9

Debt securities issued by foreign governments 2.2 0.1 - 2.3

Corporate debt securities 130.3 7.8 0.4 137.7 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 239.4 11.5 1.8 249.1 

Other debt obligations 12.4 0.2 0.2 12.4 

   Fixed maturity debt securities 582.6 24.1 3.4 603.3

Equity securities 0.1 -  0.1 -

     total $          582.7 $          24.1 $             3.5 $          603.3
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December 31, 2009

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized 

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other U.S.  
government corporations and agencies

$          93.2 $            2.3 $             0.6 $           94.9

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and political  
subdivisions of states

58.6 0.6 0.8 58.4

Debt securities issued by foreign governments 2.1 - 0.1 2.0

Corporate debt securities 107.2 4.8 0.3 111.7 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 285.7 9.6 2.8 292.5 

Other debt obligations 2.8 0.1 0.2 2.7 

   Fixed maturity debt securities 549.6 17.4 4.8 562.2

Equity securities 0.4 -  0.2 0.2

     total $          550.0 $          17.4 $             5.0 $         562.4

The Company had $63.0 million and $56.3 million of securities on deposit with state regulatory authorities at December 31, 
2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2010 by contractual maturity are 
shown below (in millions):

Amortized Cost       Fair Value

Due in one year or less $           15.2  $           15.4  

Due after one year through five years 145.5 151.6

Due after five years through ten years 127.4 130.9

Due after ten years 294.5 305.4

     total $         582.6 $         603.3

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations 
with or without prepayment penalties.  Mortgage-backed securities are included based on their final maturity. 

Proceeds from the sale of fixed maturities were $122.6 million and $94.5 million for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and 
2009, respectively.
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Realized gains/(losses) on investments for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 are summarized as follows (in millions):

December 31, 

2010

December 31, 

2009Realized gains/(losses)

Fixed maturities $            5.0 $            0.8

Equity securities (0.2)                           -

     total Realized gains $            4.8 $            0.8

The Company’s investment portfolio includes $1.7 million of unrealized losses on sixty-two fixed maturity securities that have 
been in a continuous loss position for less than 12 months.  The portfolio also includes $1.7 million of unrealized losses on 
five fixed maturity securities that have been in a loss position for more than 12 months. The balance in the Company’s gross 
unrealized losses for available-for-sale securities for the period ended December 31, 2010, was attributable primarily to reduced 
liquidity in several market segments. Based upon the nature of the fixed maturity securities, the Company believes that each 
issuer will meet all of its financial obligations.  Based on the other factors described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial 
statements and that the Company does not intend to sell or think it is more likely than not it will be required to sell the securi-
ties prior to recovery, the Company does not believe that these unrealized losses represent other than temporary impairments.  

The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by invest-
ment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 
2010 (in millions).

less than 12 months 12 months or more total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Losses

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other 
U.S. government corporations and agencies

$          10.1 $          0.3 $               - $              - $          10.1 $          0.3

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and 
political subdivisions of states

24.6 0.7 -                   - 24.6 0.7

Debt securities issued by foreign governments - - -                    - - -

Corporate debt securities 16.7 0.4 -                    - 16.7 0.4

Residential mortgage-backed securities 9.1 0.3 19.7 1.5 28.8 1.8

Other debt obligations 3.5 - 1.8 0.2 5.3 0.2

 Subtotal, fixed maturity debt securities $          64.0    $          1.7 $          21.5    $           1.7      $          85.5    $          3.4

Equity securities - - - 0.1 - 0.1

    total $          64.0 $          1.7   $          21.5 $           1.8 $          85.5 $          3.5   
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The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by invest-
ment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 
2009 (in millions).

less than 12 months 12 months or more total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Losses

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other 
U.S. government corporations and agencies

$        35.9 $         0.6 $               - $               - $         35.9 $        0.6

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and 
political subdivisions of states

33.6 0.8 -                   - 33.6 0.8

Debt securities issued by foreign governments 2.0 0.1 -                    - 2.0 0.1

Corporate debt securities 2.2 - 5.5 0.3 7.7 0.3

Residential mortgage-backed securities 41.7 0.3 19.4 2.5 61.1 2.8

Other debt obligations - - 1.6 0.2 1.6 0.2

 Subtotal, fixed maturity debt securities $      115.4    $         1.8 $         26.5    $           3.0      $       141.9    $        4.8

Equity securities - - 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

    Total $      115.4 $         1.8   $          26.7 $           3.2 $       142.1 $        5.0   

Net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on securities as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 is summarized as 
follows (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009

Fixed maturities $        20.7 $        12.6           

Equity securities     (0.1) (0.2)           

Less:  Deferred income taxes (7.1) (4.3)

      Net Unrealized Appreciation $        13.5 $       8.1          
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Net investment income, by type of investment, is as follows for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in millions):

December 31, December 31, 

2010 2009

Gross investment income:

   Fixed maturities  $      25.7    $    23.9   

   Mortgage loans, held for investment 1.0 1.2

   Limited partnerships  0.3      (0.6)

   Cash equivalents                        - 0.1

   Other, net                        -                       0.1

Gross investment income 27.0 24.7

Less: Investment expenses           (1.1)           (1.1)

     Net investment income  $      25.9   $     23.6  

The Company has adopted ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for all financial instruments accounted for at 
fair value on a recurring basis in the Company’s financial statements.  ASC 820 establishes a new framework for measuring fair 
value and expands related disclosures. Broadly, the framework requires fair value to be determined based on the exchange price 
that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market 
for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. It also establishes market or observable inputs 
as the preferred source of values, followed by assumptions based on hypothetical transactions in the absence of market inputs.
 
ASC 820 specifies that a hierarchy of valuation techniques be determined for each asset based on whether the inputs to the 
valuation technique for those assets are observable or unobservable.  Observable inputs reflect market data corroborated by 
independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect assumptions that are not observable in an active market or are developed 
internally.  These two types of inputs create three valuation hierarchy levels:
   

•	 Level 1 valuations reflect quoted market or exchange prices for the actual or identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets. 

•	 Level 2 valuations reflect inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 which are observable. The inputs can include some 
or all of the following into a valuation model:

o	 quoted prices on similar assets in active markets
o	 quoted prices on actual assets that are not active
o	 inputs other than quoted prices such as yield curves, volatilities, prepayments speeds
o	 inputs derived from market data  

•	 Level 3 valuations reflect valuations in which one or more of the significant valuation inputs are not observable in an 
active market, there is limited if any market activity, and/or are based on management inputs into a valuation model.
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The Company maintains policies and procedures to value instruments using the best and most relevant data available. In ad-
dition, we have an investment management team that reviews the valuation, including independent price validation for certain 
instruments. Further, in most instances, we retain independent pricing vendors to provide valuations of the assets and instru-
ments held in the Company’s portfolio.
 
The following section describes the valuation methodologies the Company uses to measure the financial instruments at fair value.
 
Investments in Fixed Maturity and Debt Securities

All fixed maturity and debt securities are considered available for sale and consist of: United States (“US”) Treasury notes and 
bonds which trade actively are categorized as Level 1; corporate bonds, government (“Gov’t”) or agency debt, securitized debt 
(collateralized mortgage obligation or mortgage backed security) and private placements (except where noted) have valuations 
that use such inputs as dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, similar traded securities, and other observable data to 
generate their fair values resulting in a Level 2 categorization; the Company holds one private placement included in fixed 
securities whose valuation is calculated internally using a discounted cash flow method (present value of future payments due).  
The interest rate used as the discount rate is based on a corresponding US Treasury security maturity plus a spread.  Due to the 
use of unobservable inputs and lack of liquidity of the instrument, it has been classified as a Level 3 asset.

Investments in Equities

Equities consist of two sub-categories: common stock and preferred stock.  Both the common and preferred stock have avail-
able market or exchange quotes making them Level 1 assets.

Investments in Cash Equivalents

These consist of money market fund holdings, US Treasury bills and certificates of deposit.  All of these instruments have read-
ily available market or exchange prices in an active market making them Level 1 assets.  

Separate Account Assets

The amount shown on the balance sheet represents the total of all Separate Account assets held in each of the accounts man-
aged within the Company less the amount of the Company’s holdings in Separate Account U which are included in the cash 
equivalents investments and investments in limited partnerships (“LPs”) and limited liability corporations (“LLCs”) categories.  
Assets held in the Separate Accounts consists of US Treasury bills, US Treasury bonds, cash, common stock and investments 
in money market funds all of which are Level 1 assets as their values are readily available in the open market. Corporate bonds, 
corporate commercial paper, government or agency debt and securitized debt are valued using the market approach and priced 
using pricing models or matrix pricing making them Level 2 assets.  Mortgage loans and investments in LPs and LLCs are fair 
valued using a discounted cash flow method and are categorized as Level 3 assets.  
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The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2010 (in millions):

General Account
Balance Sheet Line Item

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Balance 

12/31/2010

Equities Common Stock $           - $             - $         - $            -

Equities Total      -      -       -                -

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by 
U.S Treasury and other U.S. 
government corporations and 
agencies

65.1 43.8 -      108.9

Debt securities issued by U.S. 
states and political  
subdivisions of states

- 92.9 -      92.9

Debt securities issued by 
foreign governments

-            2.3 -       2.3

Corporate debt securities -        137.5  0.2            137.7

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities

- 249.1 -            249.1

Other debt obligations -   12.4 -        12.4

Fixed Maturities Total   65.1 538.0  0.2      603.3

Cash Equivalents

Debt securities issued by 
U.S Treasury and other U.S. 
government corporations and 
agencies

    1.7 - -     1.7

Money market funds    40.8 - -    40.8

Cash Equivalents Total         42.5 - -     42.5

Total Investments $    107.6 $     538.0 $      0.2 $     645.8
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The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2009 (in millions):

General Account
Balance Sheet Line Item

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Balance 

12/31/2009

Equities Preferred Stock $        0.2 $           - $         - $        0.2

Equities Total $       0.2      -       - $        0.2

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by 
U.S Treasury and other U.S. 
government corporations and 
agencies

60.5 34.4 -      94.9

Debt securities issued by 
U.S. states and political 
subdivisions of states

- 58.4 -      58.4

Debt securities issued by 
foreign governments

-           2.0 -       2.0

Corporate debt securities -        111.4  0.3           111.7

Residential mortgage-
backed securities

- 292.5 -           292.5

Other debt obligations -    2.7 -         2.7

Fixed Maturities Total $     60.5 501.4  0.3 $    562.2

Cash Equivalents

Debt securities issued by 
U.S Treasury and other U.S. 
government corporations and 
agencies

    5.5 - -     5.5

Money market funds   35.2 - -    35.2

Cash Equivalents Total $      40.7 - - $      40.7

Total Investments $    101.4 $    501.4 $      0.3 $    603.1
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The following table details assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2010 for all Separate Accounts 
(in millions).  Note that the Balance Sheet categories “Separate Account Assets” and “Separate Account Liabilities” include 
receivables and other items that are not required to be disclosed under ASC 820.

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Balance 

12/31/2010

Equities Common Stock $          37.6 $               - $                - $          37.6

Equities Total   37.6     -       -         37.6

Fixed Maturities
Debt securities issued by 
U.S Treasury and other U.S. 
government corporations 
and agencies

2.8 0.5 - 3.3

Commercial mortgage-
backed securities

- 9.1 - 9.1

Corporate debt securities
- 11.7 - 11.7

Residential mortgage-
backed securities -

   
13.4 - 13.4

Other debt obligations - - - -

Fixed Maturities Total 2.8 34.7 - 37.5

Cash Equivalents
Debt securities issued by 
U.S Treasury and other U.S. 
government corporations 
and agencies

291.6 0.3 -         291.9

Money market funds 112.9 - - 112.9

Cash Equivalents Total 404.5  0.3 - 404.8

Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans -  - 2,953.4 2,953.4

Investments in LP and LLCs Investments in LP and LLC                  - - 16.1 16.1

Total Separate Account Investments $        444.9 $         35.0 $     2,969.5 $     3,449.4
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The following table details assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2009 for all Separate Accounts 
(in millions).  Note that the Balance Sheet categories “Separate Account Assets” and “Separate Account Liabilities” include 
receivables and other items that are not required to be disclosed under ASC 820.

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Balance 
12/31/2009

Equities Common Stock $     69.0 $          - $             - $       69.0

Equities Total   69.0     -       -         69.0

Fixed Maturities
Debt securities issued by 
U.S Treasury and other U.S. 
government corporations and 
agencies

2.1     - -          2.1

Commercial mortgage-backed 
securities

-    9.5 -          9.5

Corporate debt securities -
  

15.5 -       15.5

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities -

   
14.6 -       14.6

Other debt obligations -    0.6 -         0.6

Fixed Maturities Total 2.1  40.2 -         42.3

Cash Equivalents
Debt securities issued by 
U.S Treasury and other U.S. 
government corporations and 
agencies

144.2 0.2 -         144.4

Money market funds   75.3 - -          75.3

Cash Equivalents Total  219.5  0.2 -       219.7

Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans            -  - 3,002.8     3,002.8

Investments in LP and LLCs Investments in LP and LLC            -            - 23.8 23.8

Total Separate Account Investments  $   290.6 $    40.4 $  3,026.6 $  3,357.6

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 
2010 (in millions): 

Balance, January 1, 2010  $          0.3  

 Sales of private placement bonds                            (0.1)

Balance, December 31, 2010                  $          0.2  
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The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 
2009 (in millions):

Balance, January 1, 2009  $          0.4

  Sales of private placement bonds (0.1)

Balance, December 31, 2009 $          0.3  

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 for Separate Accounts from January 1, 2010 
to December 31, 2010 (in millions): 

Separate Account Assets

Investment in LP’s 
and LLC’s

Mortgage Loans                 Total

Balance, January 1, 2010  $          23.8 $          3,002.8  $       3,026.6  

  Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized): 

      Losses attributable to variable annuity contract holders (8.3) (87.5) (95.8)

  Purchases by the Separate Account 0.6  599.1 599.7

  Sales by the Separate Account - (561.0) (561.0)

  Transfers in and out of Level 3  -    - -

Balance, December 31, 2010  $            16.1  $          2,953.4 $       2,969.5  

The losses for the period included in losses attributable to variable annuity contract holders related to the change in unrealized 
gains or losses relating to assets still held at December 31, 2010 are as follows (in millions):

 Investment in LP’s and LLC’s                                                     Mortgage Loans                                                              Total

     $(8.3)                                                                                   $(67.4)                                                     $(75.7)
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The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 for Separate Accounts from January 1, 2009 
to December 31, 2009 (in millions): 

Separate Account Assets

Investment in LP’s 
and LLC’s

Mortgage Loans                 Total

Balance, January 1, 2009  $          41.0 $          3,653.1  $       3,694.1  

  Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized): 

      Losses attributable to variable annuity contract holders (17.1)  (460.7) (447.8)

  Purchases by the Separate Account 1.0 1,021.6 1,022.6

  Sales by the Separate Account (1.1) (1,211.2) (1,212.3)

  Transfers in and out of Level 3  -    - -

Balance, December 31, 2009  $          23.8  $          3,002.8 $       3,026.6  

The losses for the period included in losses attributable to variable annuity contract holders related to the change in unrealized 
gains or losses relating to assets still held at December 31, 2009 are as follows (in millions):

            Investment in LP’s and LLC’s                                                     Mortgage Loans                                                              Total

                          $(17.1)                                                                              $(264.8)                                                  $(281.9)

Changes in Separate Account assets are fully offset by the same change in Separate Account liabilities.  There is no impact on 
the consolidated statement of operations in regards to these changes.

There were no assets in the Company’s general account measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of December 31, 
2010 and December 31, 2009. 
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Note 4---Mortgage Loans - Held for Investment

Mortgage loans held for investment and the related valuation reserves, if any, are as follows at December 31, 2010 and Decem-
ber 31, 2009 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,
2010 2009

Commercial mortgages  $           13.3  $      13.9

Residential mortgages 0.8 1.0

Less:  Mortgage valuation reserves - -

     Net Mortgage Loans  $           14.1    $      14.9   

The Company’s mortgage loans held for investment, net of related reserves, if any, for significant states at December 31, 2010 
are as follows (dollars in millions):

number  balance  % of   
portfolio

California 3 $      9.5 67.4%

Illinois 2 2.8 19.9%

Wisconsin 1 1.0 7.1%

Maryland 5 0.4 2.8%

Other states 5 0.4 2.8%

     Total 16 $      14.1       100.0%

Note 5---Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,
2010 2009

Leasehold improvements $         6.3 $         6.2 

Furniture and equipment 8.1 8.1

Software 27.2 28.1

  Property and equipment, at cost 41.6 42.4

Less:  Accumulated depreciation and amortization (29.4) (27.1)

     Net Property and Equipment  $       12.2  $       15.3
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Note 6---Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs deferred for amortization against future income and the related amortization charged to expense are as 
follows as of and for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009

Balance, January 1  $       27.5   $       24.6  

Costs deferred during the period:

  Direct marketing costs 2.8 3.0

  Premium taxes 4.2 2.9

  Underwriting, compensation and other acquisition costs 22.2 23.1

    Total costs deferred during the period          29.2 29.0

Less:  Costs amortized during the period (27.4) (26.1)

     Balance  $         29.3   $         27.5  
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Note 7---Claim Reserves

Activity in the liability for unpaid life and health claims as of and for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 
2009 is summarized as follows (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009

Balance, January 1 $         67.9         $         76.5         
     Less: reinsurance recoverables 2.3 4.1

Net balance, January 1 65.6 72.4
Incurred related to:
   Current year 110.7 114.0
   Prior years (9.1) (6.0)

Total Incurred 101.6 108.0
Paid related to:
   Current year 64.4 78.3
   Prior years 36.3 36.5

Total Paid 100.7 114.8
Net balance 66.5 65.6
     Plus: reinsurance recoverables 3.4 2.3

Total claim reserves $          69.9 $          67.9

Total policy reserves 125.0         128.7

Total life, accident and health and annuity reserves                            $       194.9           $        196.6

The Company’s life and accident and health operations experienced positive prior year development of $9.1 million during 
2010.  The medical stop loss products had positive reserve development of $6.7 million and group life and AD&D products 
incurred positive development of $0.9 million.  Also during 2010, there was positive development of $1.5 million on a rein-
surance assumed pool.  All of the positive reserve development was due to better than anticipated experience for benefits and 
claims expense as well as the release of appropriate year-end reserve margins.

The Company’s life and accident and health operations experienced positive prior year development of $6.0 million during 
2009 for several lines of business.  The medical stop loss products had positive reserve development of $5.1 million.  The direct 
group medical, disability and pharmacy benefit insurance products performed $0.7 million better than reserve estimates. Direct 
marketed life products recorded positive reserve development of $0.7 million with an additional $0.2 million from Individual 
Life policies.  There was also $0.6 million improvement from reinsurance assumed pools.  Group Life products incurred losses 
were $1.3 million worse than prior year estimates.  All of the positive reserve development was due to better than anticipated 
experience for benefits and claims expense as well as the release of appropriate year-end reserve margins.
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Activity in the liability for unpaid property and casualty losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) as of and for the periods 
ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 is summarized as follows (in millions): 

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009

Balance, January 1  $       153.4  $       125.7

     Less: reinsurance recoverables 33.8 34.5

Net balance, January 1 119.6 91.2

Incurred related to:

   Current year 84.1 71.0

   Prior years (3.4) (12.5)

Total Incurred 80.7 58.5

Paid related to:

   Current year 21.3 16.5

   Prior years 38.0 13.6

Total Paid 59.3 30.1

Net balance 141.0 119.6

     Plus: reinsurance recoverables 69.8 33.8

Balance  $       210.8        $      153.4       

The Company’s property and casualty operations experienced positive prior year development of $3.4 million and $12.5 mil-
lion for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.   Increases and decreases of this nature occur as the 
result of claim settlements during the current year, and as additional information is received regarding unpaid additional claims.  
Recent loss development trends are also taken into account in evaluating the overall adequacy of unpaid losses and LAE. The 
positive reserve development was due to better than anticipated experience for loss and loss adjustment expense. 

Note 8---Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company assumes risks from and cedes certain parts of its risks to other insurance com-
panies.  The primary purpose of ceded reinsurance is to limit losses from large exposures.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company of its obligations to policyholders.  To the extent that reinsuring companies 
are later unable to meet obligations under reinsurance agreements, the Company would be liable for these obligations.  The 
Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and limits its exposure to any one reinsurer.
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Union Labor Life maintains certain reinsurance agreements under excess of loss, quota share, and catastrophe coverage.  For 
Stop Loss contracts, the Company retains a maximum per person liability of $1,000,000 less the underlying Plan’s self-insured 
retention.  Any risk below that level will be retained by the Company. For group life and AD&D, and direct marketing life and 
AD&D policies, the Company retains a maximum of $125,000 per policy.

Ullico Casualty also participated in certain reinsurance agreements.  The Company cedes business under quota share and excess 
of loss reinsurance treaties.  

The effects of reinsurance on premium income and benefits and claims incurred for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and 
2009 are as follows (in millions):

December 31,         December 31,
2010         2009

Life, health and annuities premium income:
  Direct $      111.3 $        96.1
  Assumed 38.7 61.6
  Ceded (4.7) (6.8)
     Net premium income  $      145.3  $      150.9
Property and casualty premiums written:     
  Direct  $      161.6         $        74.6        
  Assumed 59.5 52.2
  Ceded (83.7) (22.2)

     Net premium income written  $      137.4              $      104.6             

Property and casualty premiums earned:
  Direct $      156.1         $        69.2        
  Assumed 57.4 49.3
  Ceded (83.6) (22.9)
     Net premium income earned $      129.9 $        95.6

Life, health and annuities benefits and claims incurred:
  Direct  $        82.0         $        75.2        
  Assumed 24.0 38.9
  Ceded (4.5)   (1.3)
     Net benefits and claims incurred $      101.5 $      112.8

Property and casualty benefits and claims incurred:
  Direct  $      122.6         $        50.5        
  Assumed 11.8 10.6
  Ceded (53.7) (2.6)

     Net benefits and claims incurred $        80.7 $        58.5
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Total amounts recoverable from reinsurers at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 are $97.2 million and $54.1 million, 
respectively.  The reinsurers with significant balances with the Company are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Reinsurance Agreements 2010 2009

Munich Re America (“Munich Re”) $           10.1 $           10.5

Zurich American Insurance Company (“Zurich”) $             5.6 $             4.6

Canada Life Assurance Company and First Great West Life and Annuity Insurance 
Company 

$             7.8 $             7.3

The Zurich and Munich Re reinsurance recoverables relate to paid claims and loss reserves on property and casualty insurance.  
Recoverables from Zurich and Munich Re relating to paid claims are $0.3 million at December 31, 2010 and $0.2 million at 
December 31, 2009. 

Union Labor Life entered into a funds withheld reinsurance agreement with Canada Life and First Great West effective Decem-
ber 1, 2006, whereby Stop Loss business is written on Canada Life and First Great West paper.  Cash from the arrangement will 
be distributed to Union Labor Life at certain specified periods of time.  

During 2006, certain annuity policies issued by Ullico Life Insurance Company and 100% co-insured with Sagicor Life Insur-
ance Company (a Texas domestic company and formerly American Founders Life Insurance Company) were fully assumed 
by Sagicor Life Insurance Company releasing Ullico Life Insurance Company of any current or future liability related to these 
policies.  As of December 31, 2010, there is approximately $2.4 million in reserves ceded to Sagicor Life. 

Effective January 1, 2009, Ullico Casualty commuted a reinsurance treaty covering a commercial auto liability program with 
Roundstone Insurance LTD.  No gain or loss was recognized on the commutation.  Ullico Casualty recorded a reinsurance re-
coverable of $5.1 million at January 1, 2009 for return of reserves of the same amount.  This amount was received in the second 
quarter of 2009.

Certain of the Company’s reinsurance agreements require the reinsurer to set up security arrangements for the Company’s 
benefit in the event of insolvency.
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Note 9---Benefit Plans

Company Benefit Plans 
The Company maintains a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan that covers certain eligible employees.  The pension 
plan’s investments include common stock of Ullico Inc. which is independently valued.  The Company also sponsors an un-
funded non-qualified defined benefit and a defined contribution savings and investment plan, as well as other postretirement 
health and life insurance benefits to eligible retirees.

The Ullico Inc. Pension Plan’s (“the Plan”) investments in Union Labor Life’s Accumulation Account, Separate Accounts, and 
Ullico Inc. Common Stock, are considered party-in-interest transactions. Fees paid by the Plan to Union Labor Life for invest-
ment management services amounted to $0.4 million for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

The defined contribution plan contains both a voluntary contribution component and a profit sharing component. The Company 
made matching contributions to the 401(k) plan of $1.0 million and $0.8 million, respectively in 2010 and 2009. The Company 
made profit sharing plan contributions in the amount of $0.2 million during 2010 and 2009.

The Company also provides postretirement health and life insurance benefits for certain eligible employees. 

Information with respect to the Company’s defined benefit plan and asset activity and defined benefit plan obligation is as follows:

obligations and funded status Qualified pension 
benefits

non-qualified  
pension benefits

postretirement 
benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

change in benefits obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $  162.1 $  150.1 $     8.2 $   7.4 $  17.1  $   16.5 

Service cost 3.8 3.2 0.3 0.2 0.1 -

Interest cost 9.6 9.2 0.5 0.5 1.0 1.0

Plan amendments - - - - - -

Actuarial loss/(gain) 6.5  6.3 0.3 0.4 1.3  0.6

Benefits paid (6.7) (6.7) (0.5) (0.3) (1.1) (1.0)

Curtailments, settlements, and special terminations - - - - - -

Benefit obligation at end of year $  175.3 $  162.1  $   8.8 $   8.2 $   18.4  $  17.1 
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Qualified pension 
benefits

non-qualified  
pension benefits

postretirement 
benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year $  106.5 $   97.6 $         - $        - $        - $        -

Market adjustment -       -           -          -          -          -

Actual return on plan assets 9.3 12.2   - -          -         -

Employer contribution 2.9 4.0 0.5 0.3 1.1  1.0

Benefits paid (6.7) (6.7) (0.5) (0.3) (1.1) (1.0)

Administrative expenses (0.7) (0.6)      -         -        -           -

Fair value of plan assets end of year $  111.3 $  106.5 $       - $       - $        - $        -

Qualified pension 
benefits

non-qualified  
pension benefits

postretirement 
benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Funded status $  (64.0) $  (55.6) $  (8.8) $  (8.2) $  (18.4) $  (17.1) 

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet (64.0) (55.6) (8.8) (8.2) (18.4) (17.1)

Qualified pension 
benefits

non-qualified  
pension benefits

postretirement 
benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive 
Income (“AOCI”) consist of:

Net actuarial loss/(gain) $    46.5 $    42.5 $  (0.1) $  (0.5) $    4.7 $    3.7

Prior service cost/(credit) 0.7 0.9      0.8       0.9 (10.4) (11.4)

Net amount recognized $    47.2 $    43.4 $   0.7 $   0.4 $   (5.7) $  (7.7)
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The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows (in millions):

Qualified pension 
benefits

non-qualified  
pension benefits

postretirement 
benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Service cost $      4.5  $     3.8 $    0.3 $    0.2 $     0.1 $      0.1 

Interest cost 9.6 9.2 0.5 0.5 1.0 1.0

Expected return on plan assets (8.6) (9.6) - - - -

Amortization of prior service cost 0.2 0.3 0.1 0.2 (1.0) (1.0)

Amortization of net/(gain) loss 1.9 0.8 - (0.1) 0.2 0.2

Net periodic benefit cost $      7.6 $     4.5 $    0.9 $    0.8 $     0.3 $      0.3

Information for our pension plans with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets is as follows (in millions):

Qualified pension 
benefits

non-qualified  
pension benefits

postretirement 
benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Projected benefit obligation $  175.3 $ 162.1 $    8.8 $    8.2 $        - $          -

Accumulated benefit obligation 165.7 151.2 8.3 7.5 18.4 17.1

Fair value of plan assets 111.3   106.5 - - - -

The estimated net loss for the defined benefit pension plans and postretirement benefit plans that will be amortized from ac-
cumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year is $2.4 million.

Qualified pension 
benefits

non-qualified  
pension benefits

postretirement 
benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Assumptions as of December 31

Discount Rate 5.65% 6.00% 5.65% 6.00% 5.65% 6.00%

Expected return on plan assets 7.75% 8.50% - - - -

Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 4.50% 3.50% 4.50% 3.50% 4.50%

The Company uses December 31 as the measurement date for its pension and postretirement plans.

For postretirement health benefit measurement purposes, a 10.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health 
care benefits was assumed for the year ending December 31, 2010.  The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% until 
2020 and remain at that level thereafter. 
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Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A one-percentage-
point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects.

1 Percentage Point Increase 1 Percentage Point Decrease 

Effect on Total of Service and Interest Cost for year $0.1 million $(0.1) million

ended December 31, 2010

Effect on Benefit Obligation as of December 31, 2010 $1.7 million $(1.5) million

Based upon current actuarial projections, the Company estimates that it will contribute up to $7.2 million to its defined benefit 
pension plan related to the 2011 pension plan year in quarterly installments beginning January 15, 2011 through January 15, 
2012.  Contributions do not reflect benefits to be paid directly from corporate assets.

The Company’s weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2010 and 2009 and target allocation for 2011 by asset 
category are as follows:

 target allocation percentage of plan assets

 2011 2010 2009

Ullico common stock 6%-12% 6.9% 7.6%

Equities 35%-65% 60.2% 52.0%

Fixed maturity securities 33%-43% 32.9% 40.4%

Other 0%-6% 0.0% 0.0%

Total  100.0% 100.0%
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The following table presents Plan assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2010 (in millions):
 

Asset Category
Investment in Group Annuity Contract with 
The Union Labor Life Insurance Company 
Separate Accounts

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Balance 
12/31/10

Equities

Separate Account E (growth oriented stock 
account)

- $ 16.2  - $  16.2

T. Rowe Price Institutional Structured Re-
search Fund (growth oriented stock account)

17.0 
                        

-
 - 17.0

Mellon Large Cap Stock Index Fund (growth 
oriented stock account)

17.1 
                                                            

-
 - 17.1

Mellon Small/Mid  Cap Fund (growth ori-
ented stock account)

                
5.5

                         
-

                         
-

                  
5.5

Ullico Common Stock -   -   7.6 7.6

Ullico Diversified International Equity Fund, 
LP (international stock account)

   11.4 -  - 11.4

Equities Total  $  51.0 $ 16.2 $  7.6 $   74.8

Fixed Maturities
 

Separate Account J (first mortgage account)                 - 14.0
                        

-
14.0

Fixed Maturities Total 
                      

-
$    14.0 -  $   14.0

Cash Equivalents
Separate Account T (cash equivalent  
account)

             - 0.2 - 0.2

Cash Equivalents Total  -    0.2 -    0.2

Total Investments $  51.0 $ 30.4 $  7.6 $   89.0

 
The total investments per the table above does not equal the total plan assets reported previously due to certain pension plan 
assets that are reported at contract value, not fair value.

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 
2010 (in millions).

Ullico Inc. Common Stock Total

Balance, January 1, 2010 $  8.0 

Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized):
  Included in earnings of the pension plan

(0.4)

Balance, December 31, 2010 $  7.6 

Total losses for the period included in earnings of the pension plan (or changes in net assets) attributable to the change in unreal-
ized gains or losses relating to assets still held at the reporting date are as follows (in millions):

Ullico Inc. Common Stock                 $(0.4)
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The following table presents Plan assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2009 (in millions):
 

Asset Category
Investment in Group Annuity Contract with The Union 
Labor Life Insurance Company Separate Accounts

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Balance 
12/31/09

Equities

 
 
 
 
 

Separate Account A (value oriented stock account) - $ 17.8  - $  17.8

Separate Account E (growth oriented stock account) - 12.8  - 12.8

Separate Account M (growth oriented stock account) - 14.4  - 14.4

Ullico Common Stock - -   8.0 8.0

Ullico Diversified International Equity Fund, LP 
(international stock account)

   10.3 -  - 10.3

Equities Total  $  10.3 $ 45.0 $  8.0 $   63.3

Fixed Maturities
 

Separate Account J (first mortgage account)                 - 14.1
                        

-
14.1

Separate Account R (fixed income account)                 - 5.0
                        

-
5.0

Fixed Maturities Total             - $    19.1 -  $   19.1

Cash Equivalents Separate Account T (cash equivalent account)              - 2.7 - 2.7

Cash Equivalents Total            -    2.7 -    2.7

Total Investments $  10.3 $ 66.8 $  8.0 $   85.1

 
The total investments per the table above does not equal the total plan assets reported previously due to certain pension plan 
assets that are reported at contract value, not fair value.

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 
2009 (in millions).

Ullico Inc. Common Stock Total

Balance, January 1, 2009 $  7.7 

Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized):
  Included in earnings of the pension plan

0.3

Balance, December 31, 2009 $  8.0 

The amount of total gains or losses for the period included in earnings (or changes in net assets) attributable to the change in 
unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at the reporting date is as follows (in millions):

Ullico Inc. Common Stock                 $0.3
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As of December 31, 2010, the following benefit payments, which reflect expected future services, are expected to be paid from 
the defined benefit plans (in millions):

Qualified pension  
benefits

non-qualified  
pension benefits

postretirement  
benefits

2011 $          7.2 $       0.4 $    1.3

2012 7.4 0.5 1.4

2013              7.6 0.5 1.3

2014              7.9 0.5 1.3

2015              8.4 0.5 1.3

2016-2020            49.9 2.5 6.9

Senior Executive Compensation Plans
The Company previously maintained a non-qualified deferred compensation plan for the benefit of certain senior executives, 
but no longer offers such benefits.  A former senior executive asserted a claim for certain deferred compensation plan benefits, 
but a settlement was reached in the third quarter of 2009, which resulted in the liquidation of the deferred compensation ac-
count.  See further discussion in Note 12, “Commitments and Contingencies”.

Due to the settlement, there were no plan assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. 

Note 10 --- Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated life-nonlife Federal income tax return including all eligible subsidiaries.  The components of 
income tax (expense)/benefit are as follows (in millions):

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009

Federal Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit

  Current $             3.4 $                  0.3

  Deferred (3.6) (1.2)

     Subtotal Federal income tax expense (0.2) (0.9)

State Income Tax Expense

  Current $                - $                     - 

  Deferred (0.1)  -

     Subtotal State income tax expense (0.1) -

income tax expense $          (0.3) $               (0.9)
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The reconciliation of Federal taxes computed at the statutory rate of 35% to the income tax (expense)/benefit is as follows (in 
millions):

December 31,  
2010

December 31,  
2009

Federal income tax expense at statutory rate $          (2.7) $          (0.9)

Claim for refund 2.4 -

Other, net   0.1 -

     federal income tax expense $          (0.2) $          (0.9)

The Federal effective rate differs from the statutory rate due to the impact of an agreement in principle with the Internal Rev-
enue Service relating to refund claims filed for previous years.

The tax effects of items comprising the Company’s net Federal deferred income tax asset are as follows at December 31, 2010 
and December 31, 2009 (in millions):

December 31,   December  31,
  2010   2009

Federal Deferred Tax Asset

   Insurance reserves $      11.2 $         8.8

   Pension and postretirement benefits 31.9 28.3

   Policyholder dividends 0.5 0.6

   Deferred partnership losses 1.3 2.6

   Tax net operating loss carryforwards 7.5 11.8

   Tax credit carryover 1.4 1.6

   Other 1.3 2.1

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax asset 55.1 55.8

Federal Deferred Tax Liability

   Deferred policy acquisition costs and ceding commissions 10.1 9.8

   Developed software and excess depreciation 2.5 3.3

   Unrealized capital gains 7.0 2.9

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax liability 19.6 16.0

net federal Deferred tax asset $      35.5 $       39.8

As of December 31, 2010, the Company has valued its net deferred tax asset in the amount of $35.5 million which represents 
the Company’s view that sufficient net positive evidence exists to support the realization and reporting of the amount as a net 
deferred tax asset within the requirements of ASC 740-10-30. 
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As of December 31, 2010, the Company has federal regular-tax net operating loss carry forwards of $21.4 million, which will 
be used to offset future taxable income.  Regular tax net operating loss carry forwards consist of $21.4 million for the non-life 
companies which start to expire in 2023.

As of December 31, 2010, for alternative minimum tax purposes, the Company has operating loss carry forwards of $20.6 mil-
lion, consisting of $20.6 million for the non-life companies which start to expire in 2023.  

The Company paid $0.8 million of federal income tax as of December 31, 2010 and no federal income tax as of December 31, 
2009.

The Company has agreed in principle to settle its remaining issues with the Internal Revenue Service for tax years 1999 to 2001.  
The amount of the refund will be approximately $5.8 million, consisting of $4.4 million in tax and $1.4 million of interest.  The 
$1.4 million of interest is included in the other assets category on the consolidated balance sheet for the year ended December 
31, 2010.  The interest is also included in the other income category on the consolidated statement of operations for the year 
ended December 31, 2010.

The Company received $5.7 million from the Internal Revenue Service in January of 2009 which partially satisfied a tax refund 
claim for tax years 1999 to 2001.   

There are no penalties on income taxes for 2010 or 2009.   There are no material unrecognized tax benefits within the meaning 
of ASC 740-10-65-2 and management does not expect any significant increase or decrease within the following 12 months.   
Tax years that remain open and subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service are calendar years 2007 and forward.   

Note 11---Borrowings and Other Actions Related to Separate Account J

Union Labor Life, on behalf of Separate Account J, executed a $50.0 million credit facility with Canadian Imperial Bank of 
Commerce (“CIBC”) in May of 2008. In January of 2009, Union Labor Life on behalf of Separate Account J, successfully 
negotiated a $50.0 million increase to $100.0 million on its line of credit with CIBC, which was secured solely by the assets of 
Separate Account J. The credit facility was available to assist with liquidity issues that may have occurred with regard to fund-
ing of outstanding commitments in Separate Account J, a pooled first mortgage account.   The unused line of credit was $100.0 
million at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company had outstanding commitments to fund mortgage loans for Sepa-
rate Account J of approximately $0.4 billion and $1.0 billion, respectively.  In order to meet these funding requirements, the 
Company has temporarily suspended current withdrawal requests of group annuity contract holders of Separate Account J as 
allowed for in the group annuity contract.   Depending on economic conditions that currently exist, this suspension of withdraw-
als will likely continue for some part of 2011.  Pursuant to the terms of the group annuity contract, such suspended withdrawal 
requests will continue to follow the fortunes of Separate Account J and reflect any gains and losses of the Separate Account 
until the valuation date on which the withdrawal is made.  The amount of suspended withdrawal requests as of December 31, 
2010 is $1.1 billion.
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Note 12---Commitments and Contingencies 

Leases
The Company leases office space, data processing and copier equipment and certain other equipment under operating leases 
expiring on various dates between 2011 and 2019.  Most of the leases contain renewal and purchase options based on prevailing 
fair market values.  Lease payments totaled $6.3 million and $7.3 million for the periods ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively.

Aggregate future minimum rent payments required under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December 31, 2010 are 
summarized as follows (in millions):

period ending  
December 31

Minimum lease  
payments

2011 $             6.7

2012 6.8

2013 7.0

2014 4.2

2015 2.7

Thereafter 8.7

total  $           36.1

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk
The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet its financ-
ing needs.  These financial instruments include investment commitments related to separate account mortgage loans.  These 
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the bal-
ance sheet.

Union Labor Life finalized a revolving credit facility agreement with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters Voluntary 
Employee Benefits Trust (“Borrower”) for a maximum amount of $2.0 million.  The Borrower had until December 31, 2010 
to make draws on the credit facility. Union Labor Life renewed the credit facility through December 31, 2011. No draws were 
taken during 2010 or 2009.

FDIC Limit
The Company maintains its own funds in bank accounts with balances in excess of the FDIC insurance limit.

Company-Owned Limited Partnerships
At December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company had $0.8 million and $1.4 million, respectively, in outstanding 
investment commitments relating to limited partnerships.
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Audits, Investigations, Litigation and Unasserted Claims

Investigations and Litigation Relating to the Former Stock Repurchase Program and Other Alleged Breaches of Duties 
by Former Ullico Officers

In re Ullico Inc. Litigation and Related Cases Concerning Former Ullico Officers
In July 2003, former Chief Legal Officer Joseph A. Carabillo filed an action in the U.S. District Court for the District of Colum-
bia against Ullico Inc. alleging claims related to his pension and his separation from employment.  Ullico Inc., The Union Labor 
Life Insurance Company, and two of Ullico’s senior executive compensation plans, a non-qualified deferred compensation plan 
and an auxiliary retirement benefits plan, filed a counterclaim against Carabillo and added as parties to the case former CEO, 
Chairman of the Board and President Robert A. Georgine, former Chief Financial Officer John K. Grelle and former Executive 
Vice President, James W. Luce.  Ullico’s counterclaim alleged claims relating to trading by the former officers in Ullico stock, 
their benefits under the deferred compensation plan and auxiliary retirement benefits plan, and various employment and com-
pensation agreements between Georgine and Ullico.

Over the next several years, the former officers on the one hand and Ullico, Union Labor Life, the Company-sponsored quali-
fied and non-qualified retirement benefits plans, the deferred compensation plan, the Company’s health and welfare plan, and 
the fiduciaries responsible for administering those plans on the other hand, filed numerous additional actions in the U.S. District 
Court for the District of Columbia, the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia, and the District of Columbia 
Superior Court.  The parties’ claims concerned the acts and omissions of the former officers in their capacities as corporate of-
ficials and as fiduciaries to the benefit plans; the compensation and retirement benefits of the former officers; Ullico stock offer 
and stock repurchase programs in which the former officers participated; claims by the former officers for indemnification from 
Ullico; and other related issues.  The federal court actions were consolidated before a single judge in the U.S. District Court 
for the District of Columbia.  Discovery was conducted in the cases over several years and numerous motions were filed by 
the parties.  

In November 2005, Georgine entered into a settlement of the claims by and against the Ullico entities.  As a result of the settle-
ment, Ullico received total cash and tax benefits in excess of $12.0 million, together with the cancellation of unfunded liabilities 
under contractual arrangements previously in place with Georgine which were undone under the settlement.  Georgine was 
dismissed from the litigation.

In June 2009, Luce and the Ullico entities entered into a confidential settlement, which resolved all of the claims asserted by 
those parties.  In December 2009, the Ullico entities entered into confidential settlement agreements with Carabillo and Grelle 
that resolved all of the claims asserted by those parties.  The settlements led to the dismissal with prejudice of the claims as-
serted by and among Luce, Carabillo, Grelle and the Ullico entities in the litigation matters described above.

As a result of the settlements described above, the litigation described above that concerned former Ullico officers has been 
concluded.  

Ullico Inc. v. National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, PA, et al.

In November 2005, Ullico filed an action against the insurance carriers for its employee benefit plan fiduciary liability, direc-
tors’ and officers’ liability, and professional liability coverages.  The suit also named as defendants Carabillo, Luce and Grelle.  
The complaint alleged that the carriers had breached the insurance policies by failing and refusing to pay the defense costs of 
Ullico and its pension plan in connection with certain DOL investigations and the claims asserted by the former Ullico officers 
in the litigation described above, and that the carriers had otherwise improperly denied coverage.  The insurers filed a coun-
terclaim in which they sought a declaration that they were not required to provide coverage to Ullico. In December 2009, the 
Ullico entities entered into a confidential settlement agreement with the insurers that resolved all of the claims asserted by the 
parties.  The settlement led to the dismissal with prejudice of the claims asserted by and among Ullico and the insurers.
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Suits Against Former Ullico Directors

In June 2006, Ullico filed four separate lawsuits against four of its former directors, William Bernard, Bill Casstevens, James 
McNulty and Jacob West, seeking the recovery of stock profits earned by those directors.  All four lawsuits were filed in the 
Superior Court for the District of Columbia.  Casstevens subsequently removed his suit to the United States District Court for 
the District of Columbia.  West died on April 5, 2007 and Ullico entered into a settlement of its claim with the West estate. Ul-
lico has settled its claims against Bernard and McNulty and those cases have been dismissed. Ullico filed a motion for summary 
judgment in the Casstevens matter, which the court denied.  No trial date has been set in that case. 

Other Legal Matters

DOL Investigation of Ullico Inc. Pension Plan and Trust and the Zenith Pension Plan, the Plan’s Administrative Committee and 
The Union Labor Life Insurance Company relating to Separate Account Investments and Related Fees

In 2002, the United States Department of Labor (“DOL”) Employee Benefits Security Administration began an investigation 
of the Ullico Inc. Pension Plan and the Zenith Administrators, Inc. Pension Plan (the “Plans”) that eventually extended to The 
Union Labor Life Insurance Company (“Union Labor Life”).  The eventual focus of the investigation was the fee arrangements 
for Separate Account J, a pooled first mortgage separate account, in which the Plans and unaffiliated plans invest.  Union Labor 
Life cooperated fully with the DOL investigation.  In November 2007, DOL and the Company reached an agreement to resolve 
the investigation. Pursuant to a consent decree, the DOL released potential claims against Union Labor Life and the fiduciaries 
of the Plans in exchange for a payment from Union Labor Life of $20.0 million (of which approximately $16.7 million was 
returned to investors in Separate Account J and $3.3 million was reserved for excise tax and required ERISA payments) and the 
implementation of a new, simplified fee structure related to Union Labor Life’s management of Separate Account J.  Union La-
bor Life did not admit that the Company acted in any way in violation of law. In addition to the $3.3 million referred to above, 
the Company recorded a liability of $1.6 million in 2008 for additional anticipated excise tax liabilities. In March 2009, the 
Company entered into an agreement that resolved the excise tax liability issue with the Internal Revenue Service, and pursuant 
to which the Company paid $4.96 million to the United States Treasury.

Trustees of the IBEW Local 26 Pension Trust Fund (Heller, et al.) v. Trust Fund Advisors, Inc.

On December 31, 2003, the Trustees of the IBEW Local 26 Pension Trust Fund (the “Fund”) filed a lawsuit to allege breach 
of fiduciary duties by Trust Fund Advisors (“TFA”, now named Ullico Investment Advisors, Inc.), its retained investment sub-
advisor, Nicholas-Applegate Capital Management (“NACM”), and Allianz AG, NACM’s parent corporation.  From 1995 to 
2001, the Fund invested assets with TFA that NACM managed as sub-advisor.  The Trustees alleged that, in breach of alleged 
duties arising under ERISA, TFA and NACM failed to provide them with material information about changes in the senior 
portfolio management staff at NACM, thereby inducing the Trustees to leave their investment with NACM during a period of 
substantial market losses.  The Trustees also contended that NACM’s acquisition by Allianz AG in 2000 caused undue disrup-
tion and inferior portfolio management performance.  In addition, the Trustees alleged that the investment management process 
of NACM did not have sufficient standards and controls to minimize risk when market conditions changed.  The Trustees al-
leged that the Fund suffered damages of at least $15 million. The suit sought recovery of investment losses, disgorgement of 
management fees, costs, interest and attorney’s fees.  TFA believed that it had meritorious defenses to the claim and filed an 
answer denying liability.  In June 2010, the parties reached agreement on the principal terms of a settlement.  A confidential 
settlement agreement was executed in October 2010, which resulted in dismissal of the litigation.
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Trustees of the Operating Engineers Pension Trust Fund (Horst, et al.) v. Trust Fund Advisors, Inc.

On April 19, 2004, the Trustees of the Operating Engineers Pension Trust Fund (the “Fund”) filed a lawsuit to allege breach of 
fiduciary duties by TFA and its retained investment sub-advisor, Nicholas-Applegate Capital Management (“NACM”).  From 
1995 to 2001, the Fund invested assets with TFA that NACM managed as sub-advisor.  The Trustees alleged that, in breach of 
alleged duties arising under ERISA, TFA and NACM failed to provide them with material information about changes in the se-
nior portfolio management staff at NACM, thereby inducing the Trustees to leave their investment with NACM during a period 
of substantial market losses. In addition, the Trustees alleged that the investment management process of NACM did not have 
sufficient standards and controls to minimize risk when market conditions changed.  The Trustees also contended that NACM’s 
acquisition by Allianz AG in 2000 caused undue disruption and inferior portfolio management performance.  The Trustees al-
leged that the Fund suffered damages of at least $15 million.  The suit sought recovery of investment losses, disgorgement of 
management fees, costs, interest and attorney’s fees.  TFA believed that it had meritorious defenses to the claim and filed an 
answer denying liability.  In June 2010, the parties reached agreement on the principal terms of a settlement.  A confidential 
settlement agreement was executed in October 2010, which resulted in dismissal of the litigation.

In Re Global Crossing Ltd, No. 02-40188 (REG); Global Crossing Ltd. Estate Representative v. Winnick, Adversary Proceeding 
No. 04-2137(REG) (S.D. N.Y. filed February 6, 2004) 

On February 6, 2004, an adversary proceeding was filed in the Global Crossing bankruptcy proceedings in United States Bank-
ruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York.  Claims asserted against Ullico and certain affiliated companies seek to 
recover amounts invested in Global Crossing.  The action was transferred to the United States District Court for the Southern 
District of New York. In July 2009, before trial of the matter, the parties entered into a settlement of the Estate’s claim and the 
court has entered a bar order reflecting the full and final resolution of the claims.  

Donald J. Trump, et al. v. Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, et al. (including The Union Labor Life Insurance Com-
pany¸ Index No. 26841/08 (Supreme Court, County of Queens, N.Y.)

In November 2008, the developer of Trump International Hotel Tower in Chicago, Illinois (the “Project”), filed suit to contest 
certain obligations of the developer and lenders under loan agreements relating to the Project.  Union Labor Life, on behalf of 
Separate Account J, is a participating lender in the Project along with numerous other lenders.  Among other things, the devel-
oper contended that a force majeure event had occurred that permitted certain adjustments to the pertinent loan agreements, 
including adjustments to repayment terms.  The developer sought confirmation by the court of a right to such adjustments.  
The complaint sought declaratory and injunctive relief, damages, costs and attorney’s fees.  Although all participating lenders, 
including Union Labor Life, were named as defendants in the action, the lead lender is principally responsible for seeking a 
resolution of the dispute.  The lead lender, Union Labor Life and other participating lenders entered into a restructuring of the 
loan in July 2010, which has resulted in the dismissal of the litigation.

Litigation Relating to Presidential Club, LLLP, Borrower

In 2005, Union Labor Life, on behalf of Separate Account J, provided a loan to Presidential Club, LLLP, (the “borrower”), to 
purchase certain real estate in Miami-Dade County, Florida for the purpose of developing a portion of the property. The loan 
is secured by a first mortgage on the property.  After approval by County zoning officials of certain development plans, the 
homeowners association for nearby homeowners (the “Association”) appealed the approval.  The borrower filed suit in state 
court to obtain declaratory relief relating to its development rights, to contest the authority of the Association to pursue the 
zoning appeal, and to assert related claims, including claims for damages.  The Association filed a counterclaim that, among 
other things, contested the borrower’s development rights under certain covenants and other documents related to the property.  
In May 2009, County zoning officials determined that zoning approval of the borrower’s development plans should not have 
been granted; the borrower filed a petition seeking judicial review of that decision and that proceeding has not concluded.  
Later in 2009, the borrower defaulted on the loan.  In October 2009, Union Labor Life assigned the loan, the mortgage interest 
and related rights to 19650 NE 18th Ave. LLC, a single purpose entity formed by Union Labor Life.  19650 NE 18th Ave. LLC 
commenced foreclosure proceedings.  The Association amended its counterclaims in the existing lawsuit with the borrower to 
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add Union Labor Life and 19650 NE 18th Ave. LLC as parties to the litigation. The Association seeks an injunction precluding 
development on the property, a declaration of the development rights relating to the property, recovery of its attorney’s fees, and 
other relief.  In May 2010, the borrower dismissed its claims for relief, but the Association’s counterclaim against the borrower, 
Union Labor Life and 19650 NE 18th Ave. LLC remains pending.  In addition, the Association filed a motion asking the court 
to require Union Labor Life to reimburse the Association for certain attorney’s fees incurred in the litigation.  The court has not 
decided the attorney’s fee issue.  No trial date has been set in the matter.  The foreclosure suit filed by 19650 NE 18th Ave. LLC 
has not been set for trial.  In January 2011, the Association filed a foreclosure action against the borrower and 19650 NE 18th 
Ave. LLC, alleging that the Association has a lien arising out of unpaid assessments and other amounts due from the borrower 
and/or 19650 NE 18th Ave. LLC, and seeking to enforce the lien.  

Litigation Relating to Kleman Plaza LLLP, Borrower

In 2006, Union Labor Life, on behalf of Separate Account J, provided a loan to Kleman Plaza, LLLP (the “borrower”), for the 
purpose of constructing a residential condominium building in Tallahassee, Florida.  The loan is secured by a first mortgage 
on the property.  In 2009, the borrower defaulted on the loan.  In November 2009, Union Labor Life assigned the loan, the 
mortgage interest and related rights to 300 South Duval Associates, LLC, a single purpose entity formed by Union Labor Life.  
300 South Duval Associates, LLC, commenced foreclosure proceedings.  There are two categories of defendants in the foreclo-
sure litigation:  mechanic’s lienors and former unit purchasers.  Several of the mechanic’s lienors and former unit purchasers 
filed counterclaims or independent lawsuits against 300 South Duval Associates, LLC, seeking compensatory damages and/or 
equitable relief.  The foreclosure proceeding is in the discovery stage.  The independent lawsuits have been consolidated with 
the foreclosure lawsuit.  Some of the lienors have entered into settlements that resolve their claims. A group of unit purchasers 
filed a lawsuit against the borrower and Union Labor Life to allege that deposits placed by the purchasers with an escrow agent 
had been improperly transferred to the borrower, and then to Union Labor Life.  This lawsuit, which has also been transferred 
to the foreclosure lawsuit, seeks return of the deposit funds, attorney’s fees and costs.  The escrow agent has also filed a lawsuit 
against the borrower, 330 South Duval Associates, LLC, and Union Labor Life, alleging that unit purchasers’ deposit funds 
were mistakenly paid by the escrow agent to the borrower, then transferred to Union Labor Life.  The suit seeks return of the 
deposit funds, which the escrow agent has purportedly replaced in the escrow account with its own funds.  No trial date has 
been set in any of the cases.

Ullico and its subsidiaries are also involved in other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of their business. In the 
opinion of management, the above investigations, litigation, and unasserted claims will not have a material impact on the finan-
cial condition, results of operations, or cash flow of the Company.

Note 13---Capital

At December 31, 2010, the insurance subsidiaries had statutory capital and surplus of $202.5 million, determined in accordance 
with statutory accounting practices utilized in filings with insurance regulatory authorities.  For the period ending December 31, 
2010, the insurance subsidiaries had a combined statutory net income of $11.9 million. At December 31, 2010, the subsidiaries 
combined statutory capital and surplus exceeds the authorized control level risk based capital by $160.0 million (unaudited).  
Access to the capital and surplus within the insurance subsidiaries is restricted by state regulations.  Currently, no dividends can 
be paid by the property and casualty insurance companies to Ullico during 2011 without approval from the Insurance Commis-
sioner of the insurance companies’ domiciled state.  The maximum dividend that Union Labor Life could pay to Ullico during 
2011 on a statutory basis without approval from the Insurance Commissioner is approximately $7.2 million.

On January 31, 2011, Ullico entered into a stock purchase agreement to sell Ulico Standard of America Casualty Company 
(“USA Casualty”), a wholly-owned subsidiary.  The consummation of the sale is subject to the approval by the California In-
surance Department.

On July 29, 2010, approval from the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Maryland was granted to dividend $5.0 million 
from Union Labor Life to Ullico. The dividend to Ullico from Union Labor Life was paid on October 22, 2010.  
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The Company declared a $0.50 per share dividend on February 18, 2010 which was paid on May 19, 2010.  The amount of the 
dividend was $4.6 million. The dividend was recorded as a reduction to stockholders’ equity.

On September 30, 2009, approval from the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Maryland was granted to dividend $15.0 
million from Union Labor Life to Ullico. The dividend to Ullico from Union Labor Life was paid on October 1, 2009. 

On August 25, 2009, the Board of Directors of USA Casualty declared a dividend to its parent, Ullico in the amount of $5.0 
million subject to approval by the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of California (“the Commissioner”).  Approval from 
the Commissioner was granted on November 3, 2009 for a $4.0 million dividend.  The $4.0 million dividend to Ullico from 
USA Casualty was paid on November 4, 2009. 

The Company declared a $0.50 per share dividend on February 20, 2009 which was paid on May 20, 2009.  The amount of the 
dividend was $4.6 million. The dividend was recorded as a reduction to stockholders’ equity.

Note 14---Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

Comprehensive income for the periods ended at December 31, 2010 and 2009 consist of the following (in millions):

December 31, December 31,
   2010 2009

Net income $          7.4 $      1.7

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax:

   Unrealized holding gains arising during the period 7.3 3.7

   Reclassification adjustment for unrealized gains on securities included in net income (1.9) (0.5)

   Change in unrealized gain on securities, net of $2.9 and $1.7 in tax for December 31, 2010 and 2009 5.4 3.2  

   Change in pension liability, net of $(2.1) and $(1.8) in tax for December 31, 2010 and 2009 (3.9) (3.4)

Other comprehensive gain/(loss), net of tax 1.5 (0.2)

comprehensive income $          8.9 $      1.5

Note 15---Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 825, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of fair value information about financial 
instruments, whether or not recognized in the Balance Sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value.  In cases where 
quoted market prices are not available for identical or comparable financial instruments, fair values are based on estimates using 
the present values of estimated cash flows or other valuation techniques.  Estimated fair values can be significantly affected by 
the methods and assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates as to the amounts and timing of future cash flows.  
Accordingly, the fair values may not represent actual values of the financial instruments that could have been realized by the 
Company as of year-end or that will be realized in the future.

Fair values for the Company’s insurance contracts other than investment contracts are not required to be disclosed under ASC 
825.  However, the estimated fair value and future cash flows of liabilities under all insurance contracts are taken into consider-
ation in the Company’s overall management of interest rate risk, which minimizes exposure to changing interest rates through 
the matching of investment maturities with amounts due under insurance contracts.  Management believes that disclosing the 
estimated fair value of all assets without a corresponding revaluation of all liabilities associated with insurance contracts can be 
misinterpreted.  The aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the actual value of the Company.
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The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments: 

Limited partnerships and limited liability corporations are reported under the equity method of accounting.  The carrying value 
of the limited partnerships and limited liability corporations is assumed to approximate its fair value.  The fair value of mort-
gage loans are estimated through the use of discounted cash flow techniques using interest rates currently being offered for 
similar loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings. Mortgage loans with similar characteristics are aggregated for purposes 
of this analysis.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with defined maturities and policyholder funds on deposit liabilities are valued 
using discounted cash flow techniques based upon interest rates currently being offered by the Company for similar contracts 
with maturities consistent with the contracts being valued.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with no defined maturities are valued 
using discounted cash flow techniques based upon a risk free interest rate, adjusted for Company specific non-performance 
risk and a non-stochastic process margin or the amount payable on demand at the reporting date.  Other assets and liabilities 
considered financial instruments such as premium and accounts receivable, accrued investment income and cash are generally 
of a short-term nature and their carrying values are deemed to approximate fair value.

(in millions) December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Financial Instrument
Carrying 

Value
Fair Value

Carrying 
Value

Fair Value

Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations 17.0 17.0 16.9 16.9

Mortgage loans held for investment 14.1 14.6 14.9 15.4

Policyholder funds on deposit 3.4 3.4 3.4 3.3

Deposit-type annuity contracts 94.5 90.4 95.6 86.3

Note 16---Subsequent Event

On February 11, 2011, the Company announced plans to reduce its workforce by approximately 10 percent.  The Company 
estimates that the total pre-tax charge resulting from the workforce reduction will be approximately $1.2 million.  This charge 
was incurred in the first quarter of 2011.  
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